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S
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Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

Honorable County Executive

Honorable County Comptroller

Honorable Members of the County Legislature
County of Erie, New York:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major find, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the County of Erie, New York (the “County™), as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2015 (with the Erie Community College for the year ended August 31, 2015), and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial
staternents as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The County’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements m accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and majntenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not
audit the financial statements of the Erie County Fiscal Stability Aunthority (“ECFSA*), which represent
5.9% and 3.9% of the assets and revenues, respectively, of the governmental activities. We did not audit
the financial statements of Erie County Medical Center Corporation (*ECMCC™), a discretely presented
component unit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Erie Community College Foundation,
Inc. (“Foundation™) or the Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation and
Subsidiary (“ILDC”), which are shown as aggregate discretely presented component units, and represent
57.5% and 3.5%, respectively, of the assets and 17.6% and 37.8%, respectively, of the revenues of the
aggregate discretely presented other component units. Those financial statements were audited by other
auditors whose reports thereon have been famished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the
amounts included for the ECFSA, ECMCC, Foundation, and ILDC, is based solely on the reports of such
other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement. The financial statements of the Erie Community College Foundation,
Inc. and the Auxiliary Sexvices Corporation of Erie Community College, Inc. were not audited in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design andit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An andit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County, as of December 31, 2015, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective
budgetary comparison of the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note X VIII to the financial statements, the County has restated net position of
govermnmental activities and fund balance of the Community Development Fund as of December 31, 2014,
In addition, during the year ended December 31, 2015 the County implemented Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (“GASB”) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions—an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions
Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68. Our opinion is not
modified with respect to these matters.

Otlter Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management
Discussion and Analysis and other Required Supplementary Information, as listed in the table of contents,
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with anditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of Aunerica, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Other Information

" Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively

» comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, as
required by the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (the
“Uniform Guidance”) is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
basic financial statements.

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
: of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic

financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generaily accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

. In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 21, 2016
on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other .
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the County’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Md Mol A P

June 21, 2016
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Year Ended December 31, 2015
(unandited)

This section of the County of Erie, New York’s (the “County™) Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis presents a discussion and anaiysis of the County’s financial performance during the year ended December 31, 2015, and
incorporates financial information from the year ended December 31, 2014 for comparative analysis purposes. Please read it in
conjunction with the County’s basic financial statements following this section. For comparative purposes, certain items from the
prior year have been reclassified to conform with the current year presentation. All amounts in this Management’s Discussion
and Analysis, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in thousands of dollars.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

®= The primary government’s liabilities and deferred inflows of resources exceeded its assets and deferred outflows of
resources at the close of the 2015 fiscal year by $16,523 (deficit net position). This consists of $75,151 restricted for specific
purposes (restricted net position), $475,982 net investment in capital assets and a deficit in unrestricted net position of
$567,656 at December 31, 2015.

" As a result of current year activity, the primary government’s total net position increased by $11,885. Governmental
activities increased the County’s net position by $10,290 and business-type activities increased the County’s net position by
51,595,

® As of December 31, 2015, the County’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $321,274, a decrease of
3437 in comparison to the prior year. Approximately 30.9% of the total combined governmental funds fund balance,
$99,311, is available to meet the County’s current and future needs (wnassigned fund balance).

® At the end of the fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $99,859, or 77.1%, of the total General
Fund fund balance of $129,500. Nonspendable, restricted and assigned General Fund fund balance totaled $29,641 at
December 31, 2015,

®  The total bonded debt of the primary government decreased by $24,880, or 2.7%, during the 2015 fiscal year.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The discussion and analysis provided here is intended to serve as an introduction to the County’s basic financial statements. The
County’s basic financial statements include three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial
statements, and 3} notes to the financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, other supplementary
information is included.

Government-wide Financial Statements - The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a
broad overview of County finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Position presents financial information on all County assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows/outflows of
resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All
changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in
future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of these government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are principally supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all, or a significant
portion, of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the County include
general government, public safety, health, transportation, economic assistance and opportunity, culture and recreation, education,

and home and community service.
Comm. 19E-17
Page 8 of 112



5 « COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK

The business-type activities of the County include Erie Community College {“College”} and the Utilities Aggregation Fund. A
fiscal year ending August 31 is mandated by New York State law for the College. Accordingly, financial information for the
College is presented as of and for the fiscal year then ended.

On July 12, 2005, the Governor of the State of New York signed legislation creating the Erie County Fiscal Stability Authority
{(“ECFSA™). The ECFSA began its work during 2005 in an advisory role and provides the County with financial oversight while
giving local leaders the ability to improve the County’s fiscal condition without further State intervention. The ECFSA is
included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the County itself (i.c., the primary government) but also the legally
separate Buffalo and Erie County Public Library (the “Library”), Erie County Medicat Center Corporation (the “ECMCC™) and
other component units. Financial information for these discretely presented component units of the County is reported separately
from the financial information presented for the primary government itself, The Library does not issue separate financial
statements,

Fund Financial Statements — A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate finance-related legal compliance. All funds of the County are divided into three categories:
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds are vsed to account for essentially the same functions reported as govermmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental funds financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year, Such information may be useful in evaluating a county’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to
compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s
near-term financing decisions, Both the governmental fiunds’ Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental finds and governmental
activities.

The County maintains fourteen (14) individual governmental funds. Additionally, the County reports the activities of its blended
component units within its governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental funds® Balance Sheet
and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for the General Fund and General Fund of the ECFSA
blended component unit (reported as a major special revenue fund). Data from the other governmental funds and blended
comnponent units are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.

The County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for
the General Fund.

Proprietary funds - The County maintains one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise finds are used to report the same functions
presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The County uses enterprise funds to account
for the College and the Utilities Aggregation Fund, which is used to account for the bulk purchase and resale of gas, oil, and
electric utilities.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The
College is considered to be a major proprietary fund of the County.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not
reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the
County’s own programs. The County has one fiduciary fund, the Agency Fund, which is used to account for funds held by the
County as agent for employee withholdings, guarantee and bid deposits, court funds, monies due to other governments, and other
miscellaneous items.

Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Comm. 19E-17
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Required Supplementary Information — In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information concerning the County’s progress in funding its obligation to provide other
post-employment benefits to its employees and the County’s net pension liability/(asset). Required supplementary information
can be found immediately following the notes to the financial statements.

Finally, the Federal Financial Assistance Schedules section can be found on pages 93-104.
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position over time may serve as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position, In the case of the
County’s primary government, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources exceeded assets and deferred outflows of resources
by $16,523 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

Summary Statement of Net Position as of December 31, 2015 and 2014

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2015 2014 > 2015 2014 * 2015 2014 *
Current and other assets .......... $ 712171 $ 735,263 $ 60,309 $ 54,802 $ 772,480 $ 790,065
Capitalassets . ................. 848,608 841,443 35,102 31,499 883,710 872,942
Totalassets .................. 1,660,779 1,576,706 95,411 86,301 1,656,190 1,663,007
Total deferred oufflow s of resources 67,487 66,761 4,186 2,344 71,673 69,105
Current and other liabilities ... ...... 255,575 279,227 22,304 22,685 277 879 301,912
Long-term liabilites . .. ............ 1,375,453 1,379,403 81,410 79,205 1,456,863 1,458,608
Total liabilities . ................ 1,631,028 1,658,630 103,714 101,890 1,734,742 1,760,520
Total deferred inflow s of resources . 2,111 - 7,033 - 9,644 -
MNet position:
Net investment in
capitalassets . ................ 443,834 411,226 32,148 27,069 475,982 438,295
Restricted .. ......... ... .. ... 75,161 76,976 - - 75,151 76,976
Unrestricted (deficit) ... ......... (523,858) (503,365) (43,798) (40,314) (567,656) {543,679)
Total net position ........... $ (4873) $ (15163) $ (11,650) $ (13,2450 § {16,523) $ (28,408)

* As restated

A significant portion of the County’s net position at December 31, 2015 ($475,982) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g.,
land, buildings, improvements, infrastructure, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still
outstanding and any unspent proceeds from bond issues. The County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the County’s investment in its capital assets is reported
net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the County’s net position ($75,151) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how
they may be used. '

The remaining component of the County’s net position, a deficit of $567,656, represents unrestricted net position which reflects
all liabilities that are not related to the County’s capital assets and which are not expected to be repaid from restricted resources.
Long-term liabilities are typically funded annually in the funds with revenues of that year, The combined total of (1) Erie
Tobacco Asset Securitization Corporation (“ETASC”, a blended component unit of the County) bonds net of discount,
(8344,218), issued to be paid back with future tobacco proceeds which are anticipated to be received annually over the next
forty-five (44) years, and (2) the long-term liability associated with other post-employment benefits (“OPEB”) (§427,676), is
greater than this deficit. As the revenue recognition criteria for the future funding of these liabilities has not been met, no assets
have been recorded to offset these liabilities.
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At the end of the current fiscal year, the County is able to report positive balances in two of the three categories of net position
for the County as a whole, and in one category for its business-type activities. Governmental and business-type activities have an
unrestricted deficit net position of $523,858 and $43,798, respectively, at December 31, 2015.

The following table indicates the changes in net position for governmental and business-type activities for the current and prior
fiscal years:

Summary of Changes in Net Position for the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2015 2014 * 2015 2014+ 2015 2014 *
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges forservices . . ............ 3 69,239 g 60,381 $ 54,781 g 65,216 $ 124,020 $ 134,597
Operating grants and
contributions . . ................. 418,078 419,988 6,002 5,707 424,080 425,695
Capital grants and
contributions . .................. 14,274 21,276 - - 14,274 21,276
General revenues:
Propertytaxes .. ................. 277,889 274,900 - - 277,889 274,900
Salesandusetaxes............... 754,966 743,220 - - 754,966 743,220
Transfertaxes . .................. 11,888 12,010 - - 11,888 12,040
Federal, state and
local appropriations . .............. - - 71,039 71,854 71,039 71,854
Unrestricted interest earnings . .. .. .. 632 810 30 52 662 862
Miscellanecus and other. . .. ....... 24,459 31,476 - - 24,459 31,476
Totalrevenues . .........ccveeuann. 1,571,425 1,573,061 131,852 142,829 1,703,277 1,715,890
Expenses:
General government . . ............ 424,884 428,452 - - 424 884 428,452
Publicsafety . . .................. 170,293 163,889 - - 170,293 163,889
Health.................. ... 78,789 78,013 - - 78,789 78,013
Transportation ... ................ 79,804 83,903 - - 79,804 83,903
Economic assistance
and opportunity . .. ......... ..., 609,415 621,463 - - 609,415 621,463
Culture and recreation . . ........... 19,828 22,708 - - 19,828 22,708
Education....................... 72,047 68,013 - - 72,947 68,013
Home and community service . .. .. .. 51,506 53,419 - - 51,506 53,419
Interest and fiscal charges . ......... 36,115 36,859 - - 36,115 36,859
College.........coooviiin, - - 129,053 131,991 129,053 131,991
Purchase and resale of utilities . . .. .. - - 18,758 29,199 18,758 29,199
Totalexpenses .. .......cvicnennnnn 1,543,581 1,556,719 147,811 161,190 1,691,392 1,717,909
Excess (deficiency)
beforetransfers . .. ............... 27,844 16,342 {15,959} {18,361} 11,885 (2,019)
Transfers . .............c ... (17,554} (17,429) 17,554 7,429 - -
Changein netposifion.............. 10,290 (1,087) 1,595 (932} 11,885 (2,019)
Net position - beginning of year ... .. .. {15,163} (35,453) (13,245) {11,057} (28,408) (46,510}
Restatement. . ..................... - 21,377 - (1,256) - 20,121
Net position -ending . . ... .......... $ (4873) % (15163) $ (11,650) $ {13,245) $ (16,523) § (2B,408)
* As restated
Comm. 19E-17
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Governmental Activities

During the year ended December 31, 2015, governmental activities increased the County’s net position by $10,290. Revenues
and expenses decreased by 31,636 (0.1%) and £13,138 (0.8%) respectively, from 2014 to 2015. Key elements of these decreases
are as follows:

3 (Capital grants and confributions decreased $7,002 (32.9%) during the year mainly as a result of State and Federal aid
decreases for road and bridge projects ($8,263) slightly offset by increases for sewer projects ($2,086).

" The 811,746 (1.6%) increase in the sales and use taxes category was primarily the result of a modest growth in taxable sales.

®  Miscellaneous and other revenues decreased by $7,017 (22.3%) mainly due to a decreased excess operating credit received
from ECMCC ($7,121).

"  Public safety expenses increased by $6,404 (3.9%) as a result of increases in payroll and fringe benefits for Sheriff ($1.905)
and Jail Management ($3,027), increase in interdepartmental billing for correctional health services (3403) and a decrease in

interdepartmental Sheriff billings to other departments ($724).

=  Transportation expenses decreased $4,099 (4.9%%) primarily due to decrease spending on highway supplies ($2,106) and
expenses related to the November 2014 snow storm ($3,500) offset by an increase in spending on motor vehicles ($1,771).

®  Economic assistance and opportunity expenses decreased by 512,048 (1.9%) as a result of decreased spending for a variety
of social services programs ($11,148).

"  Education expenses increased by $4,394 (7.3%) primarily due to an increase in interfund expenses to ECC ($1,934) along
with an increase in various education programs ($2,430).

Business-type Activities

Business-type activities increased the County’s net position by $1,595 in the 2015 fiscal year compared to a decrease of $932 in
2014, The College generated an increase in net position of $1,486 and a decrease of $1,142 for the years ended August 31, 2015
and 2014, respectively. The College’s operating loss at August 31, 2015 was less than the operating loss at August 31, 2014 by
$3,297, as operating revenues generated increased $402 and operating expenses decreased $2,895. Revenues generated during
the fiscal year ended August 31, 2015 increased primarily as a result of contract settlements and the refund of prior year
expenses, Expenses decreased mainly as a result of a change in accounting for pension expense ($3,900), and scholarships
($1,617) due to a decrease in the number of students receiving grant funding which corresponds to an overall decrease in
enroliment, while OPEB expense increased ($2,733) due to an increase in the College’s annual required confribution. The
County sponsorship share of support to the College for the College’s fiscal year ended August 31, 2015 was $17,554, and is
reported as a 2015 operating transfer to the College from the County’s General (§15,754) and Special Capital ($1,800) Funds.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY’S FUNDS
As noted earlier, the County uses firnd accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds - The general government functions are contained in the General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, and
Capital Projects Funds. The focus of the County’s govermmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows,
and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the County’s financing requirements. In particular,
unassigned fund balance, which is available to meet the County’s current and future operational needs, may serve as a useful
measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. At December 31, 2015, the County’s
governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $321,724, which is a decrease of $437 in comparison with the prior
year.
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Nonspendable fund balance totaling $43,861 consists of prepaid items ($12,712) and community development loans ($31,149).
Nonspendable amounts represent net current financial resources that are either not in in spendable form or legally or
contractuaily required to be maintained intact.

Restricted fund balance in the amount of $119,676 is constrained to specific purposes and consists of $154 for education,
advocacy and increased public awareness of handicapped parking laws, $30,614 for the future repayment of bonded debt service
and $88,908 to fund capital projects and the purchase of capital assets.

Assigned fund balance includes amounts intended to be used for a specific purpose that are subject to a purpose constraint
imposed by a formal action of the Erie County Legislature. Significant assignments by the County at December 31, 2015 include
$24,592 to meet expenditure requirements in the 2016 fiscal year, $1,000 for future settlements of various claims and litigation,
$3,282 to repair various roads, $8,771 to fund year-end encumbrances and $20,781 that represents the positive residual balances
of the County’s Special Revenue Funds that have not been classified as nonspendable, restricted or assigned for another purpose.

Approximately 30.9% of the County’s total fund balances consists of unassigned fund balance ($99,311). Deficit unassigned
fund balance amounts in the E-911, Grants and the Community Development Special Revenue Funds amounting to $548 are
caused by nonspendable fund balance amounts recorded for prepaid items.

Following is a discussion of the significant balances and operations of the major and selected nonmajor funds.

= General Fund — The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At December 31, 2015, unassigned fund
balance of the General Fund was $99,859, while total fund balance was $129,500. As a measure of the General Fund’s
liquidity, it is useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned
fund balance represents 7.6% of total expenditures (excluding other financing uses), while total fund balance represents
9.9% of that same amount. Fund balance in the County’s General Fund increased by $335 during the 2015 fiscal year
compared to during the 2014 fiscal year, when the General Fund experienced an increase of $8,796.

=  ECFSA General Fund — This fund is the chief operating fund of the ECFSA and is reported as a special revenue fund of
the County. Total fund balance at the end of the current fiscal year was $145, a decrease of $685 from the 2014 amount, and
is classified as nonspendable for prepaid items ($15) and assigned fund balance ($130) in the County’s fund financial
statements.

= Roead Special Revenue Fund — Ending fund balance decreased by $1,650 compared to a $1,916 increase during 2014.
Total expenditures increased by $3,518 which is primarily due to an increase in highway supplies ($2,697), workers’
compensation ($565) and snow contracts ($198). Total revenues decreased by $1,205 which is primarily due to a decrease
in consolidated highway aid ($978) and transfer taxes collected from real property tax sales (§122). Net transfers increased
by $1,157.

= Sewer Special Revenue Fund — Total fund balance at the end of the current fiscal year was $36,003, an increase of $2,576
from the 2014 amount. Revenues increased by $1,681 primarily from real property taxes ($1,243) and sewer service
contract revenues ($213). Transfers out to subsidize the Debt Service Fund for sewer district projects that were bonded
increased by $707.

= Debt Service Fund — The Debt Service Fund has a total fund balance of $10,226, which is restricted solely for the purpose
of payment of future debt service. The net increase in fund balance during the current year of $2,137 was mainly the result
of transferring unspent capital project monies from the Capital Project Funds to pay remaining debt service of $5,418, of
which $2,461 was used during the 2015 fiscal year.

= ECFSA Debt Service Fund — At year-end, the ECFSA held County cash in the amount of $38,986 that was accumulated by
intercepting and withholding the County’s sales tax receipts from New York State. These monies will be used for future debt
service payments.

s Capital Projects Funds — The County reports six (6) capital projects funds which account for the construction and re-
construction of general public improvements, At the end of the 2015 fiscal year, the total fund balances restricted for future
capital projects amounted to $88,908, of which $43,833 was encumbered for contracted projects underway,

During 2015, the County’s capital outlay decreased in the General Government Buildings, Equipment and Improvements Fund
{$27,210) and Highways, Roads, Bridges and Equipment Fund {($18,327), and increased in the Sewers, Facilities, Equipment and
Improvements Fund ($10,056) and Special Capital Projects Fund (33,847). Comm. 19E-17
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COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK - 10

Proprietary funds - The County’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
financial statements but in more detail. The College had an unrestricted deficit net position of $46,066 at August 31, 2015.

The following table shows actual revenues, expenses, and results of operations for the current and prior fiscal years:

Summary of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

Nonmajor
Major Fund Fund
College Utilities
(August 31,} Aggregation Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Operatingrevenues . . ................ % 41,916 $ 41,514 g 18,867 $ 29,409 $ 60,783 $ 70,923
Operatingexpenses . . ............... 128,909 131,804 18,758 29,199 147 667 161,003
Operating (loss)income .............. (86,993) {90,290) 109 210 (86,884) {90,080)
Non-operating revenues, net........... 70,925 71,719 - - 70,925 71,719
Net (loss) income hefore
contributions and transfers ., ......... (16,068) (18,571} 109 210 {15,959) (18,361}
Transfers . ........covi ... 17,554 17,429 - - 17,554 17,429
Change in net position......... $ 1,486 $ (1,142) % 109 $ 210 $ 1,595 $ {932}

The net loss before contributions and transfers of enterprise funds during 2015 of $15,959 is comprised of a net loss of $16,068
for the College and net gain of $109 for the Utilities Aggregation Fund.

The College reported a total deficit net position of $13,918 at August 31, 2015, The College’s net position has decreased
significantly over the past nine fiscal years as a result of the adoption in 2007 of Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(“GASB™) Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.

Other factors concerning the activities of these funds have been addressed in the previous discussion of the County’s business-
type activities,

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

An annual appropriated budget is adopted for the General Fund on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles, except that encumbrances are reported as budgeted expenditures in the year of incurrence of commitment to purchase.

During the 2015 fiscal year there was a $418,433 decrease in total budgeted revenues between the original and final budget.
The main component of the net decrease is the reclassification of $425,203 from the *Sales and use taxes’ line to the ‘Transfers
in’ line to match sales tax transfers received from the ECFSA which intercepts the County portion of sales tax remitted by the
New York State Department of Taxation and Finance. Major increases were for intergovernmental aid for social services
(32,180) and mental health (8303) programs and court facilities renovations ($710), and 1niscellaneous revenues for refunds of
prior year’s social services expenses (5§2,448).

The budget for other financing sources was increased during the year by $424,723, primarily for the sales and use taxes
reclassification referred to in the previous paragraph.

Budgeted appropriations and other financing uses increased by $24,446. Budgeted expenditures increased in general government
support (37.922), primarily for claims and judgments (32,067), personal services ($2,000), foreclosure costs ($800) and
additional payments to ECC ($1,000) and ECMCC ($1,500); public safety ($2,101), mainly for interdepartmental billings for
correctional health services ($1,055), Sheriff vehicles ($213) and Probation overtime (8316); education ($2,976) mostly for
settlement of Faculty Federation of ECC labor contract ($2,000) and payments for County residents enroiled in other community
colleges (3975); and, transfers out ($11,237), chiefly for various grants to the Grants Special Revenue Fund (3536), additional
road repairs and maintenance ($8,326) to the Road Special Revenue Fund, and to fund various capital projects ($1,998) in the
General Government Buildings, Equipment and Improvements Fund.

For the year, actual revenues fell short of budget by $12,499. This was mainly due to negative budgetary variances in sales and
use taxes of $14,105 as actual results fell short of projections, and in the intergovernmental category of $15,407 mainly due fo

Comm. 19E-17
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11 - COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK

lower than expected claims for various social services programs ($13,991), health services ($682) and court facilities aid
($1,020). Miscellaneous revenues exceeded budget by $15,869 primarily as a result of two payments received from ECMCC for
an excess operating credit ($7,258) and a refund of a prior year expense ($5,343).

Actual expenditures were less than budget by $32,480 primarily due to savings in various categories as follows: general
government support ($16,459), mainly due to less than anticipated salaries ($1,379) and fringe benefits ($492) in various
departments, lower than expected spending for utilities ($1,167) and auto, truck and heavy equipment supplies ($1,027), lower
than projected payments to local municipalities and school districts for their share of County sales and use tax ($6,157), less than
anticipated payments to ECMCC ($1,500), and monies for judgments and claims ($1,000), foreclosure costs ($975), early
retirement incentives for ECC employees ($1,000), and family court building renovations ($360) that were appropriated in 2015
and carried forward for spending in 2016; health ($1,787), mostly for payments to various coniract agencies for mental health
programs ($791), and opioid crisis response ($376) and lead poisoning prevention ($750) programs appropriated in 2015 not
spent and carried forward for spending in 2016; economic assistance and opportunity ($11,160), primarily all related to Social
Services for a daycare block grant ($1,430), family assistance program ($5,479), Medicaid local share ($1,313),
interdepartmental billings paid to other departments ($1,325) and payroll and fringe benefits ($438); and education ($1,248),
chiefly for a children with special needs program ($1,388).

The County experienced a positive variance in other financing uses ($5,906), as transfers to the Road Fund ($5,000) and Grant
Fund ($986) were appropriated in 2015 and carried forward to 2016.

The total budget to actual variance for the year amounted to a positive $26,027.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

The County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of December 31, 2015, amounted
to $883,710 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, infrastructure, buildings and
improvements, improvements other than buildings, equipment, College library collections, and construction in progress. The
total increase in the County’s investment in capital assets for the current period was 1.2%.

The County’s infrastructure assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost in the government-wide financial
statements as required by GASB. The County has elected to depreciate infrastructure assets.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included an increase to the governmental activities buildings and
improvements and transportation network of $59,740 and $31,447, respectively.

Capital assets net of depreciation for the governmental and business-type activities are presented below:

Summary of Capital Assets at December 31, 2015 and 2014
{net of depreciation)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

land ..o e $ 31,125 5 31,085 $ - 5 - % 31,125 3 31,085
Buitdings and improvements . ... ... .. .. 264,315 241,705 20,798 15,821 305,113 257,526
Improvements cther

than buildings . ... ... ....... .. ... 9,341 10,816 31 34 9,372 10,850
Sewer and transporiation

networks . ..... ... .. il 447,613 444,292 - - 447 613 444,292
Machinery and equipment . ... ......... 17,070 22,738 7,297 8,865 24,367 31,604
Library collections ... ............ ..., - - 1,094 1,111 1,084 1,111
Construction inprogress . ............. 59,144 90,806 5,882 5,668 65,026 96,474

=1 | $ 848,608 $ 841,443 $ 35,102 $ 31,499 $ 883,710 $ 872,942

Additional information on the County’s capital assets can be found in Note I{G)(4) and Note VII of this report.

Comm. 19E-17
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COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK - 12

Debt Administration

At December 31, 2015, the primary government had totai bonded debt outstanding of $896,172, as compared to $921,052 in the
prior year. During the year, payments and other reductions of bonded debt amounted to $96,732, while additions and accretions
amounted to $71,852. The issuance of long-term debt is a direct function of the County and is reported within the governmental
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.

Summary of Long-term Bonded Debt Outstanding at December 31, 2015 and 2014

Governmental
Activities
2015 2014

Erie County bonds . . .. .. e e e e $ 439,661 $ 464,816

Less: ECFSAmirrorbonds . .. ... ... .. i (274,475) {313,155)
NetErie County bonds . .. ..o vttt i i it ettt i e inanann 165,186 151,661
EOFSA bONds . . ot e 349,040 391,770
ETASC tabacco settlementbonds . .. .. ... ... . 0 e 355,202 351,007
Unamortized bond discounts - ETASC . ... ... oot (10,984) {11,069)
Unamortizedbond premiums .. . .. .. .o i 37,728 37,683

Total primary government long-lerm bonded debt outstanding . ........... $ 896,172 $ 921,052

Tobacco settlement bonds are payable only from the assets of ETASC and are not legal obligations of the County.

New York State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 7% of its five-year
valuation. The current debt-limitation for the County is $2,883,561, which is only 13.58% exhausted by the County’s
outstanding general obligation debt of $452,965 (which includes a $84,790 bond guaranty to ECMCC).

The County’s current bond ratings are as follows: Standard & Pooi’s at AA- (stable outiook), Moody's at A2 (stable outiook) and
Fitch Ratings at A+ (stable outlook).

Additional information on the County’s long-term debt can be found in Note XIII of this report,
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County’s finances for all those with an interest in the
government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report, or requests for additional financial
information, should be addressed to the Erie County Office of the Comptroller, 95 Franklin Street, Room 1100, Buffalo, New
York 14202.

Comm. 19E-17
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COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK - 13

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These basic financial statements include the financial statements and related notes of the

reporting entity that are essential to fair presentation of financial position and results of
operations. The reporting entity includes the primary government and its discretely
presented component units.

Comm. 19E-17
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14 . COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK

Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2015

(dollars in thousands)

ASSETS:

Cashandcashequivalents .. ........... ... ... ... ... ..
Investments . . ... v e
Restricted cash and cashequivalents . ... ............ ...,
Receivables {net of allowances) . .........................
Due from primary government . . ... ... .o .
Duefrom componentunit. ... ... ... i e
Internal balances . .. ... ... . i e
IMvenOmiES . . . e e
Prepaiditems . . ... ... . i e e e
Noncurrent net pensionasset. . ....... ... ... ... ... L.
Noncurrent otherassets . .. .. ... ..o . i
Capital assets:

Land, rare books and construction in progress .. ...........

Other capital assets, net of depreciation . . ... ............

Totalassets .. ... coiinirenrar s

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Deferredchargeonrefunding .. ........o v ool
Deferred outflows relating to pensions . ......... .. .. .. ... ..
Deferred outflow on forward purchase agreementswap........
L0 =

Total deferred outflows ofresources ... .............

LIABILITIES:

Accountspayable . .. ... .. ... ..
Accruedliabilities . . ... ... ...
Duetocomponentumit .. ... ... ... ... i
Duetoprimarygovernment . . ......... . oo iiiiviaieas,
Unearned revenue . . .. ... ..ot e
Short-termdebt. ... ... .
Long-term liabilities:

Duewithinoneyear. . ... ... . i

Dueinmorethanoneyear. ...........coiiiivinnn e

Totalabilities . ... ... ... i s

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Deferred inflows relatingfopensions .. ........ ... .. 0L

NET POSITION:

MNef investmentin capitalassets .. .. ....... ... . ... .. ...
Restricted for:
Community developmentloans . ...................... ..
Capital projects . .. ... ..o i
Debtservice .. ... .. .. . e
Other PUINPOSES .« . o ittt i it nine v emim et
Unrestricted . ... ... oo e

Totalnetposition.......... .ot

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
83,898 3 43,856 $ 127,754
59,558 - 59,558
88,843 - 88,843
372,192 4,282 376,474
88,246 9,193 97,439
6,722 (7,791) {1,069)
12,712 3 12,715
- 40,651 10,651
- 115 115
90,269 5,882 96,151
758,339 29,220 787,559
1,560,779 95,411 1,656,190
25,249 - 25,249
33,985 4,186 38,171
8,253 - 8,253
67,487 4,186 71,673
58,468 4,419 62,887
61,366 8,356 69,722
26,910 - 26,910
19,271 9,529 28,800
89,560 - 89,560
84,052 6,376 90,428
1,291,401 75,034 1,366,435
1,631,028 103,714 1,734,742
2,111 7,533 9,644
443 834 32,148 475,982
31,149 - 31,149
23,51 - 23,511
20,337 - 20,337
154 - 154
(523,858) (43,798} {567,656}
(4,873) § {11,650) % {16,523)

Comm. 19E-17
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COMPONENT UNITS

Library ECMCC Other
8,087 $ 30,611 £ 2,536
- 13,062 3,930
- 136,392 -
570 127,066 422
- 26,910 -
- - 36
899 7,318 15
- 9,113 859
11,360 7,921 -
5,654 272,161 331
26,550 630,554 8,129
1771 4,960 -
- 1,224 -
1,771 6,184 -
359 45,646 a5
720 44 836 1,173
- 97,439 -
397 13,691 -
839 5,618 -
26,244 290,161 -
28,559 497,391 1,268
110 4,122 -
17,014 107,223 331
- 44,352 3612
(19,023) (16,350) 2,918
(348) § 135,225 $ 6,861

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK » 15
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16 - COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK

Statement of Activities
For the year ended December 31, 2015

(dollars in thousands}

PROGRAM REVENUES

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions / Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
Generalgovernment .........vvivirnvenn $ 424,884 3 25,624 5 23,993 $ 1,027
Publicsafety .......... ... i, 170,293 6,065 3,582 -
Health. . ... ... . i, 78,769 2,237 58,266 2
Transportation .............. ... ... ... 79,804 - 9,716 4,123
Economic assistance and opportunity . . ... .. 609,415 23,431 250,493 20
Culture and recreafion .. ................. 19,828 1,406 1,421 2,982
Education ............oviiinnnnn.nn 72,947 95 36,632 2,157
Home and community service ... ......... 51,508 10,381 8,203 3,963
Interest and fiscatcharges .. . ............. 36,115 - 16,772 -
Total governmental activities .......... 1,543,581 69,239 418,078 14,274
Business-type activities:
College (August 31, 2015) . ........ .. .00 128,053 35914 6,002 -
Utilities aggregation .. . .................. 18,758 18,867 - -
Total business-type activities .. ........ 147,811 54,781 6,002 -
Total primarygovernment . . .................. $ 1,691,392 $ 124,020 $ 424,080 $ 14,274
Component units:
Library . ... i $ 28,893 $ 844 $ 3,327 $ -
ECMCC ... 556,343 548,575 7,562 575
Other componentunits . .. ... ... ..., 4,721 2,429 2,243 -
Total componentunits ... ... ..o ininranas $ 589,957 $ 551,848 $ 13,132 $ 575

General revenues:

Property taxes levied for mall, sewer, and general purposes . .. .........co0.

Property taxes levied forlibrary . ... ... ..o i e
Salesand usetaxXes . ... ... e
Transfertaxes . .. .o e e
Unrestricted state and local appropriations . .. ... ..... ... ... ... .. ... ...
Federal and siate student financialaid . ... ....... ..o,
Interest earnings not restricted to specificprograms .. ... ... ... .
Unrestricted interestearnings .. ... ..o i
MISCEHANBOUS . . o vt et it i e e
Gainonsaleofcapital assets . . . ... .. ..

Total general FreVenUeS . oo v v i v v e ns v e s e e iaa e e a e aanaans

L2 L = -

Total general revenues andtransfers .. ......... oo a i i et

Changeinnetposition......... i iiiiiirisiiianiieiiiranrnanas

Net position - beginning, as restated (see Note XVII) . ...... ... oo iiatt,

Netposition-ending .. ....ou it i ittt et iiar e asaets e anansn
Comm. 19E-17 ,
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— NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE and CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT COMPONENT UNITS
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total Library ECMCC Other

% (374,240) % - 8 (374,240) % - § - % -

{160,646) - (160,646) - - -

{18,284) - (18,284) - - .

{65,965) - {65,965} - - -

(326,471) - {326,471) - - -

{14,019) - {14,019) - - )

(34,063) - {34,063) - - .

(28,959) - {28,959) . - -

(19,343) - {19,343} - . -

{1,041,990) - {1,041,990) . - -
- (87,137) (87,137) - - -

" - 109 109 - - -
. {87,028) {87,028} - - -

(1,041,990} (87,028) (1,129,018) - - -

{24,722) - .

- 369 -
- - (49)
(24,722) 369 (49)

277,889 - 277,889 - - -

- - - 23,014 - -

754,966 - 754,966 - - -

11,888 - 11,888 - - -

- 32,867 32,867 - - -

- 38,172 38,172 - - -
- - - 2 2,931 -
632 30 662 - - -

24 206 - 24,206 199 27 -

253 - 253 - - -

1,069,834 71,069 1,140,903 23,215 2,858 -
(17,554) 17,554 - - - '
1,052,280 88,623 1,140,903 23,215 2,958 -
; 10,290 1,595 11,885 (1,507) 3,327 (49)
b (15,163) (13,245) (28,408) 1,159 131,898 6,910
% (4,873) & (11,650} $ {16,523) $ (348) § 135,225 $ 6,861

L

Comm. 19E-17

Page 22 of 112
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Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
December 31, 2015

{doilars in thousands}

Total Total
ECFSA Nonmajor Governmental
General General Funds Funds
ASSETS:
Cashandcashequivalents . ... ... ............ ... $ 23,916 $ 176 $ 59,806 $ 83,898
Investrments . .. ... ... L - - 59,558 59,558
Restricted cash and cashequivalents . . .............. 154 - 88,688 BB,843
Receivables (net of allowances)
Real property taxes, interest, penalties
and Bens .. ... ... e 80,475 - 16 80,491
Other . e 7,304 - 31,860 39,264
Duefromatherfunds . ... ... oo oL 110,608 - 47,483 158,091
Due from componentunit . . ... i 7,262 - 172 7,434
Due from othergovernments ... .................... 149,225 53,163 20,573 222,961
Prepaiditems .. ... ... . ... .o 9,087 15 3,610 12,712
Total assets ... ... .o it ettt & 388,031 $ 53,354 $ 311,867 $ 753,252 o
LIABILITIES:
Accountspayable . .. ... ... ... Ll 5 15,183 % - % 13,357 $ 28,540
Accrued liabilities . . .. ... ... L. 46,661 35 7,691 54,387
Duetootherfunds............. .o 4,534 53,164 93,671 151,369
Duetocomponentunit. ... ... ... L. 910 - - 910
Duetoothergovernments ... ........... .. ... ... .. 27,215 - 867 28,082
Retained percentages payable . .. ....... ... ........ - - 1,848 1,846
Unearmnedrevenue .. ... ... ... . i 16,455 10 2,806 19,271
Shorttermdebt. . ... .. . 89,560 - - 89,560
Total liabilities ... .....cveeo e e 200,518 53,209 120,238 373,965
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Unavailable revenue — property taxes . . ... ........... 58,013 - - 58,013
FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable:
Community developmentloans . .................. - - 31,149 31,149
Prepaiditems . ... .. ... ... . i iiiiiii 9,087 15 3,610 12,712
Restricted for:
Handicapped parking . . ... ... ... . ... ... ..... 154 - - 154
Debtservice .. ... ... .. i - - 30,614 30,614
Capitalexpenditures . .. ..........coiiiin i - - 88,908 88,908
Assigned:
Subsequent year's
expendifures . ... ... .. L e 16,511 - 8,081 24,592
Judgmenisandclaims . ......... . ... ... .. ... 1,000 - - 1,000
Other purposes . . .. .. oo ii i s 2,889 130 29,815 32,834
Unassigned .. ..... ..ot 99,859 - (548) 99,311
Totalfund balances . ..........cii i i 129,500 145 191,629 321,274
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances ... ...... ... ... ..., $ 388,031 $ 53,354 $ 311,867 $ 753,252

Comm. 19E-17
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Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds to the Government-wide Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2015

{doilars in thousands)

Governmental
Activities
T Total fund balances - governmental funds (page 18) . ... ........c.cooivann.. Ceeraeeaes % 321,274
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
position {page 14) are different because:
. Capitat assets used in governmental activities are not financiai
L resources and, therefore, are not reportedinthefunds .. ......... .. ... v, 848,608
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures
and, therefore, are not reported inthe funds . ..o oo et o e e e 29,476
Certain property tax revenues are not available to pay for current period
expenditures and, therefore, are reported as unavaitable revenue inthefunds .. .......... 58,013
ECFSA interest receivable is reported when earned in the
government-wide financial statements, but in the fund financial
statements income is reported only if it will be received within
sixtydaysof year-end. . . ... .. .. e e 3,298
Due from a component unit was deemed to be not due and payable
73 in the current period and, therefore, not reported inthefunds. .. ...................... 80,812
wd Deferred outflows and inflows of resources refated to pensions are applicable to
future periods and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Deferred outflows related to employer contributions ... ............. ... ... ... 27,707
Deferred outflows related to experience and investmenteamnings . ................... 6,278
Deferred inflows relating to pensionplans . .. ... ... .. o (2,111}
Certain deferred outflows of rescurces represent a consumption of
: net position in a future pericd and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.
A Unamortized deferred amounts onrefundings . . ... ... o r i e i i e 7,213
Unamortized deferred amounts on refundings - ETASC . .. ... oo iii i i n 18,036
1 Certain current liabilities and long-term fiabilities, including bonds
o payable, are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Accrued bond interest . . .. ... e e (9,177)
Accrued bond interest -ETASC ... ... oo (1,100)
L Compensated aDSBNCES . . .. v vttt e e {22,997}
Judgments and Claims . ... e e (55,346}
i Other post-employment benefits (OPEB) ... ...ttt e e e e (362,162)
[ Net pension fiability . . ..o oo e e e (30,523)
o Due to COMPONeNt LNt . . . ...ttt et et e e et (26,000)
Unamortized bond premilms . .. .. r e i i et e (37,728)
Unamortized bond discounts - ETASC . ... .. i i i i e et 10,984
s Bonds payable . ... .. e e e (514,2286)
o Bonds payable - ETAS G . . ... e e e {355,202)
Net position of governmental activities . . .. .. ..ot in i ittt i it i i, 3 {4,873)

Comm. 19E-17
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the year ended December 31, 2015

(dollars in thousands)

Total Total
ECFSA Nonmajor Governmental
General General Funds Funds
REVENUES:
Real property faxes and taxitems .. .......... 240,389 - 40,017 280,406
Salesandusefaxes...................... 326,220 425,203 3,543 754,966
Transfertaxes . ........ ... - - 11,888 11,888
Intergovernmental . . ....... ... . o L. 343,524 405 72,259 416,188
Inteffund revenues ... ... ... oL, - - 206 206
Depatmental . ... ... ... ... . ... ......... 58,017 - 11,230 69,247
Interest .. ... e e 609 23 4,268 4,900
Miscellaneous . . .. ... ... ... ... .. ... 20,426 - 7.946 28,372
Totalrevenues . .............couvvnnn 989,185 425,631 151,357 1,566,173
EXPENDITURES: o
Current: .
General government support ... ... ... L 394,059 470 7,735 402,264
Publicsafety................c.coovu... 144,743 - 12,661 157,404
Health. .. ... .. i i 65,026 - 8,543 73,569
Transportation . ... .......oor .. 23,137 - 27,397 50,534
Economic assistance and opportunity . . . . . .. 588,683 - 15,004 603,687
Culture andrecreation. .. ................ 17,409 313 - 17,722
Education............ .o, 71,177 - - 71,177
Home and community service. .. .......... 2,690 - 43,043 45,733
Capitaloutlay . .........coii i - - 66,645 66,645
Debt service:
Principal retirement . . . ...... ... .. ... ... - - 88,040 88,040
Interest and fiscalcharges . .. ............. - 1,187 36,784 37,971
Totalexpenditures . . ................. 1,306,924 1,970 305,852 1,614,746
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
overexpenditures . ............ . 0 e (317,739) 423,661 (154,495) {48,573)
OTHER FINANCING SCURCES {USES):
Issuance of general obligationdebt. . ......... - - 32,000 32,000
Premium on bond issuance . . ............... - - 8,822 8,822
Proceeds of refundingbonds ... ......... ... - - 24,615 24,615
Saleofproperty . . ... ... ... ..o 227 - 26 253
Transfers M. ..o v e e st e m e e aas 425,661 377 181,454 607,492
Transfersout. ......... ..o (107,814} (424,723} (92,509) (625,046)
Total other financing
SoUrces (USeS) . .. ... oiiiianin, 318,074 {424,346) 154,408 48,136
Netchange infundbalances . ............... 335 (685) (87) {437)
Fund balances - beginning,
as restated (seeNote XVHl) . ............. ... 129,165 830 191,716 321,71
Fund balances -ending ... ............ . 0vt $ 129,500 $ 145 $ 191,629 $ 321,274

Comm. 19E-17
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Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds to the Government-wide Statement of Activities
For the year ended December 31, 2015

3’”? {dollars in thousands})
P Governmental
Activities
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 20) . ..ot vt it ct e e st r e e rneneees $ {437}
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (pages 16-17)
are different because:
P Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities
. the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and depreciated. This is the
amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation expense in the current period.
Capital outlays, net of disposals of $499 . .. ... ... . $ 63,680
. Deprecialion @XpeNSe . . .. e e (56,515}
iy Netadjustment . . . ... oo 7,165
' Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported as
revenue in the funds:
Unearned revenue - Miscellaneous . . . . ... ... .. i e 12,529
el PO Y XS . o v ittt e e (2517)
Netadjustment . ... ... . e e 10,012
re Revenues of the ECFSA in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are
not reported as revenues iNthe FUNds . ... ... .. o i e e e (641}
Govemmental funds report loans fo a component unit to be repaid on a long-term basis as expenditures.
In the statement of net position, however, the cost of those outlays increases the due from component unit
and does not affect the statement of activities. Similarly, repayment of long-term loan principal is a
revenue in the governmental funds and thus contributes to the change in fund balance. In the statement of
net position, however, repayment of long-term loan principal reduces the amount due from the component
unit and does not affect the statement of activities.
£ Loan principal FetremMENE . . . ottt et e ettt et e e e (4.817)
Bt Net differences between pension contiibutions recognized on the fund financial statemenis and the
government-wide statements are as follows:
5 Direct pension ContribuUtioNS. . . ... . 27,707
Cost of benefits earned net of employee contributions . . .. ... ... . .. oo i {16,681}
Net adjustment . . ... e e, - 11,026
Bond proceeds are reported as other financing sources in the governmental funds and thus contribute to the
change in fund balance. In the statement of net position, however, issuing debt increases long-term debt and
does not affect the stalement of aclivities. Similarly, repayment of bond principat is an expenditure in the
governmental funds and thus contributes to the change in fund balance. In the statement of net position,
however, payment of debt reduces the long-term debt liability and does not affect the statement of activities.
Principal re MmNt . L . e e 85,820
BONdS I8SUEd . i e (32,000)
L Proceeds of refunding bonds . ... ... ... . (24,615}
Premium on bond ISSUBNCE . . ... ...t e e (8,822)
o Amortization of premium on bonds . . ... ... . e e B,777
Principal retirement, amortization of bond discount -ETASC ... ... .. e, 2,135
o Neb adjuSIMEnt . ... ..ot e - 31,295
) Certain activity reported in the statement of activities does not require the use of current financial
; resources and, therefore, is not reported in the governmental funds.
P INberest 0N BONdS . .. e 1,690
Due to component Unit . . . ... e e e {5,258)
Deferred charge on refunding . . . ... ..o e (1,359)
o Compensated aDSeNCES . . .. ..o it e e {434)
Judgments and claims {long-termchange only) . ........... o i (1,215}
i Accreted intarest « ETASC . .. . e e e e, {6,415)
Inferest On bONds - ETASC . 1. i 11
Deferred charge on refunding - ETASC . . .. .o u ittt i e e (763)
Other post-employment benefits (OPEB) . .. ... ... it e e e e e {29,570)
Netadjustment . . .. ... ... e - (43,313}
Change in net position of governmental activities . .. ... . ...t iii e e i e Comm. 19E-37 10,290
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General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual {Non-GAAP Basis of Accounting)
For the year ended December 31, 2015

{dollars in thousands}

Original Final Budgetary Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Real property taxes and taxiterns . .. .......... 3 239,800 $ 235,800 $ 240,389 % 589 L
Salesandusetaxes........................ 765,528 340,325 326,220 (14,105) P
intergovernmental . ... .. ... .. o i, 355,328 358,931 343,524 (15,407)
Departmental .. ........ .. ... .. ot 56,460 57,201 58,017 816
Interest . ... ... 893 870 609 (261)
Miscellaneous . . . ... .. ... .. i 2,108 4557 20,426 15,869
Totalrevenues . ..............coiinaiunn 1,420,117 1,001,684 989,185 {12,499)
EXPENDITURES: -
Current; L
General government support . .. ... ... ... 402,488 440,410 393,961 16,459
Publicsafety . .......... ... ns 143,646 145,747 144,940 807
Health....... ... ... o o i, 65,977 66,908 65,119 1,787
Transportation . ......... ... .. oL 23,632 23,532 23,137 395
Economic assistance and opportunity .. ... ... 601,434 600,185 589,025 11,160
Culiureandrecreation. .................. 17,147 17,680 17,403 287
Education . ... ... ... . ... i 69,441 72,417 71,169 1,248
Home and community service . ............ 2,622 2,655 2,649 6
Debt service:
Interest and fiscalcharges . . .............. 377 331 - 331
Total expenditures . .. ....... ... .00 1,326,664 1,339,873 1,307,393 32,480
Excess (deficiency} of revenues
over expenditures . ........... .00 93,453 (338,189) (318,208) 19,981
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES):
Saleofproperly .. .. ... o i e 102 102 227 125
Transfersin. . oo i et 923 425,646 425,661 15
Transfersout. . ....c..oiiiiiiin i {102,483) {113,720} (107,814} 5,906
Total other financing sources (uses)....... {101,458) 312,028 318,074 6,046
Net change infund balances *................ $ (8,005) $§ (26,161) §% {134y $ 26,027

* The net change in fund balances was included in the budget as an appropriation {i.e., spend down) of fund balance.

Comm. 19E-17
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Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
Decemnber 31, 2015

(dollars in thousands)

Business-type Activities

Enterprise Funds
Major Nonmajor
Fund Fund
Coilege Utilities
{August 31, 2015) Aggregation Total
ASSETS:
Current assets:
L Cash and cashequivalents . .. ............. 3 43,856 $ - $ 43,856
R Receivables (net of allowances) . ........... 3,562 142 3,704
Due from otherfunds . .. ................. 31 1,327 1,358
Due from componentunit. . ............... - 9,193 9,193
P Due from other governments .. ............ - 578 578
Prepaiditems . ......................... - 3 3
Totalcurrentassefs ................ 47,449 11,243 58,692
f g Noncurrent assets:
L Netpensionasset....................... 10,651 - 10,651
Otherassets . . ......... ..., 115 - 115
£ Capital assets, net of depreciation:
Constructioninprogress . ............... 5,882 - 5,882
i Other capital assets, net of depreciation . . . . 29,220 - 29,220
Total noncurrent assets ., ........... 45,868 - 45,868
Totalassets ............c..c00unn 93,317 11,243 104,560
el DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred outflows relating to pensions . . ....... 4,186 - 4,186
. LIABILITIES:
L Current liabifities:
Accountspayable . . ........ ... ... .. ..., 2,360 736 3,096
o Accrued fiabilities . ... ... ... . L L., 8,354 2 8,356
- Duetootherfunds .. .............. ... ... 2,235 6,914 9,149
U Due to other governments ... ............. - 1,323 1,323
Fringe benefits payable -current . . ... ...... 4,899 - 4,899
Capital leases ~current .. ................. 1,477 - 1,477
Uneamedvevenue .. .................... 9,529 - 9,529
Total current liabilities ... ........... 28,854 8,975 37,829
; Noncurrent liabilities:
; Fringe benefits payable .. ................ 5,078 - 5,078
Capitalleases . . ..... ... .. ... ... .it. 1,477 - 1,477
Net OPEB obligation. .................... 65,514 - 65,514
Net pension fiability . . .................... 2,965 - 2,965
Total noncurrent liabilities . .......... 75,034 “ 75,034
e Total liabilities . . ................ 103,888 8,975 112,863
i DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred inflows relating to pensions . . ........ 7,533 - 7,533
NET POSITION:
Netinvestment in capitalassets . . .. .......... 32,148 - 32,148
i Unrestricted, reported in:
- College . ... ... i i e {46,066) - (46,066)
Nonmajorfund. ......................... - 2,268 2,268
: Total net position................ 5 {13,918) $ 2,268 $ {11,650)
Comm. 19E-17
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Funds
For the year ended December 31, 2015

{dollars in thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES:

Studenttuitionandfees . .. ... .. L,
Intergovernmental revenues andcharges . .. ..............
Stateandlocalcontracts . . ... ... .. oL L
Interfundrevenues .. ...... ... i e
Otheroperatingrevenue . . .. ... ... i iiiiiiiniinan.s

Total operatingrevenues . . ... .. ... ot iiniiiaann
OPERATING EXPENSES:
EmMpiOyee WagES « v o v o o r e
Employeebenefits ... ... ... il
Scholarships ... o e
Supplies, servicesandgeneral . . ... ... ... ..

Utilities and telephone . ... ... .. . i i
Depreciation . .. ..o o et

Total operating expenses .........covveininannna..
Operating {loss)income ., ............... .. ... ...
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Unrestricied state and local appropriations . ... ............
Federal and state student financialaid . . .................
Income frominvestments . . ........... ... . oo,

Loss ondisposalof plantassets . ... ...... ... ... ... ...
Inferestexpense . .. ... .. ... ..

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) .. ...........

{Loss) gain before transfers .....................

Transfers N ... .. . e
Changeinnetposition . ... ... ... iiiiiiinanes.

Total net position - beginning, as restated (see Note XVIil}. ..

Total net position-ending . ... ... .. i

See accompanying notes to the financial stafements.

Business-type Activities

Enterprise Funds

Major Nonmajor
Fund Fund
Coliege Utilities
{August 31, 2015) Aggregation Total

$ 34,010 - $ 34,010
1,938 - 1,938

4,064 - 4,064

- 6,987 6,987

1,904 11,880 13,784

41,916 18,867 60,783

59,184 76 59,260

29,146 38 29,184

16,187 - 16,187

18,536 - 18,536

1,869 18,644 20,513

3,987 - 3,987

128,909 18,758 147,667
{86,993) 109 {86,884)

32,867 - 32,867

38,172 - 38,172

30 - 30
{16) - (16)
{128) - {128}

70,925 - 70,925

(16,068) 109 {15,959)

17,554 - 17,554

1,486 109 1,595

{15,404) 2,159 (13,245)

$ (13,918) 2,268 $ {11,650Q)

Comm. 19E-17
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Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the year ended December 31, 2015

(doHars in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Receipts from students and utility customers. . ...............
Payments to employees forservices . . .....................
Payments o suppliers for goods and services .. . .............
Paymenis for scholarships .. .........ccoci i i L,
Federal, state and focalgrants . .. ........... .. .ivviin,
Internal activity - payments fromotherfunds . . ...............
Other operatingrevenues . .. ......... ... .. ... ..

Net cash used for

operating activities . ............... ... ... ...

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

County contribuffon . . . ... .. . e
State approprialions . ... ... i e e e
Municipal chargebacks .. ....... ... .. ... L oLl
Federal and state student financial aidgrants . .. .............

Net cash provided by non-capital

financing activities . ........... o i i i

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of capitalassets . .. ............................
Capital leasepayments .. ... ... oot

Net cash used for capital and related

financing activities . .. .. .. ... .. ... . i i,

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchasesofinvestments . .......... ... .o iiiiiea.

Net decrease in cash

Cash, beginningofyear...............coieiiaol,
Cash,endofyear..........coiiiieiiniiii s

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Major Nonmajor
Fund Fund
College Utilities
{August 31, 2015) Aggregation Total
$ 33,307 5 8853 % 42,160
(89,852) {114) (89,966)
(19,878) (18,853) (38,731)
(16,188) - (16,188)
6,296 - 6,296
- 10,114 10,114
2,722 - 2,722
{83,593} - {83,593)
17,554 - 17,554
43,874 - 43,874
1,216 - 1,216
25,683 - 25,683
88,327 - 88,327
(7,608) - {7,606}
(1,476) - {1,476)
{9,082) - (9,082)
30 - 30
{4,318) - {4,318)
48,174 - 48,174
$ 43,856 $ - 8 43,856
(Continued)
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Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the year ended December 31, 2015

(dollars in thousands)

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Major Nonmajor
Fund Fund
College Utitities
(August 31, 2015) Aggregation Total

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING (LOSS) INCOME TO NET
CASH USED FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating {loss}inCome . ... ..ot ii i e % (86,993} % 109 $ (86,884)
Adjustments to reconcile operating (loss) income to net cash
used for operating activities:

Depreciation eXpense .. ...t v 3,987 - 3,987
Decrease (increase} in assets:
Receivables, nel . ... ... .. e (457) 237 (220}
Pensionasset, net. . .......... . {10,042) - (10,042)
Deferred outflows relatingtopension . . ......... ... ... ..... (2,085) - (2,085)
Dueftomotherfunds ... ... ... i e - (529) {529)
Due from componentunit. . ....... ... o i - {3,696) {3,696)
Due from othergovernments .. ......... ... .. ... ... - 591 581
Prepaid Hems . . ... .. . e - 1 1
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accountsandotherpayables . .......... ... ... .. ... ... 527 (889) (362)
ACCrUed BXPEMSES . .. ot ittt e i e 134 {3) 131
Duetootherfunds . .. ...ovvvr oo e e e e - 3,649 3,649
Duetoothergovernments . .......... ... ... ... . ... ..., .. - 530 530
Uneamed reVeNUE . . .. ... it i it innne s 37 - 37
Other long-term liabifities . . . . .. ....... .. ... i 4,767 - 4,767
Pension liability, net .. ... ... .. . (1,001) - {1,001}
Deferred inflows relatingtopension.............. ... ... ...... 7,533 - 7,533
Net cash used for

operating activities . ...... ..o v e 3 (83,583) $ - $ (83,533)
{Concluded)

Comm. 19E-17
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Statement of Net Position

Agency Fund
(o December 31, 2015

{dollars in thousands}

Agency
Fund
ASSETS:
M Cash and cash equivalents ... ............ 3 44,924
H Receivables:
Otherreceivables . . ................... 542
Bonds and securities held incustody . .. .. ... 20
o Tofalassets . ........coovvvevinnas 5 45,486
LIABILITIES:
7 Amounts held in custody forothers . ......... 5 45,486
Total liabilities . .. .................. $ 45,486
%
£
Comm. 19E-17
See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 32 of 112
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended December 31, 2015

I-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basic financial statements of the County of Erie, New York (the “County”) have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP™) as
applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (the “GASB™) is the accepted
standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more
significant of the County’s accounting policies are described below.

A.

Description of Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. All fiduciary activities are reported only in the fund financial statements. Some
amounts reported as interfund activity have been eliminated from these statements. Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other
nonexchange transactions, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported
separately from the legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially
accountable.

Reporting Entity

The County was established in 1821. Subject to the New York State Constitution, the County
operates pursuant to its Charter and Administrative Code (the “Charter”), as well as various local
laws. Additionally, certain New York State laws govern the County to the extent that such laws are
applicable to counties operating under a charter form of government. The Charter was enacted by
local law and approved by the electorate at a general election held in November 1959. The
Administrative Code was enacted into local law in 1961. The County Legislature is the legislative
body responsible for overall operations, the County Executive serves as chief executive officer, and
the County Compiroller serves as chief fiscal, accounting, reporting and auditing officer.

‘The County provides mandated social service programs such as Medicaid, Temporary Assistance for
Needy Families and Safety Net. The County also provides services and facilities in the areas of
culture, recreation, police, libraries, youth, health, senior services, roads, and sanitary sewerage.
These general governmental programs and services are financed by various taxes, state and federal
aid, and departmental revenue (which is primarily comprised of service fees and various types of
program-related charges). Additionally, the County operates the Eriec Community College (“the
College™).

The financial reporting entity includes the County (the “primary government”) and its significant
component units, A component unit is either a legally separate organization for which the elected
officials of a primary government are financially accountable, or another organization for which the
nature and significance of its relationship with a primary government is such that exclusion would
cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete,

Comm. 19E-17
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1.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Financial data of the County’s component units that are not part of the primary government
is reported in the component units columns in the government-wide financial statements, to
emphasize that these component units are legally separate from the County. The aggregate
discretely presented component units are not simply an extension of the primary government
(e.g. substantially different governing body and services are provided to the general public).
These discretely presented component units include the following:

The Buffalo and Erie County Public Library (the “Library”), formed through a consolidation
of several public and private libraries, was established by the County and chartered by the
State University Board of Regents in 1953. Tt is a separate and distinct legal corporation that
receives an annual budgetary contribution from the County. Library operations are governed
by a Board of Trustees who are appointed by the County Legislature. Bonds and notes for
Library capital costs are issued by the County and are obligations of the County. Title to real
and personal property acquired with County funds vests with the County. The Library is
included as a component unit of the County in the financial statements based on the fact that
it is a lepally separate entity for which the County is financially accountable. The Library
does not issue separate financial statements.

Erie County Medical Center Corporation (“ECMCC”) is a public benefit corporation
created in 2003 for the purpose of acquiring and operating the health facilities of the County.
Effective January 1, 2004, a transaction was executed which transferred ownership of the
capital assets, equipment, inventories and certain other assets to ECMCC in exchange fora
payment of $85,000,000 from ECMCC to the County. Concurrent with the transaction,
$101,375,000 of ECMCC bonds were issued, which are guaranteed by the County. Pursuant
to consent decrees entered into between the County and ECMCC, the County is committed
to providing ongoing operating and capital support to ECMCC. The following component
units are included within ECMCC:

Research for Health in Erie County, Inc. (“RHEC”) is a nonprofit organization
dedicated to developing and increasing the facilities of the public health institutions,
agencies, and departments of the County. Additionally, RHEC is committed to
provide more extensive conduct of studies and research into the causes, nature, and
treatment of diseases, disorders, and defects of particular importance to the public
health. RFIEC’s support comes primarily from investment income. The financial
statements of RETIEC have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. RFEC
is exempt from income tax as a not-for-profit corporation under Section 501 (c)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code. The entity has not been receiving funding in recent
years. The annual financial report can be obtained by writing Grant Administration,
Research for Health in Erie County, Inc., 462 Grider Street, Buffalo, NY 14215,

ECMC Foundation, Inc. (the “Foundation”), formerly the ECMC Lifeline
Foundation, Inc., is a nonprofit organization exempt from federal income taxes
under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Foundation was formed
for the purpose of supporting ECMC programs. The annual financial report can be
obtained by writing to: Executive Director, ECMC Foundation, Inc., 462 Grider
Street, Buffalo, NY 14215.

The Grider Initiative, Inc. (the “Physician Endowment™) is a nonprofit organization
exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code. The Physician Endowment was formed in 2009, and funded in 2019, for the

Comm. 19E-17
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purpose of recruiting physicians who shall practice on the Grider Street campus of
ECMCC. The entity was funded with an initial transfer of $10,000 from ECMCC.
Earnings from the investment of the initial transfer may be used only for physician
recruitment and reasonable and necessary expenses of the entity. The annual
financial report can be obtained by writing to: Chair, The Grider Initiative, Inc., 424
Main Street, Suite 2000, Buffalo, NY 14202.

ECMCC is considered to be a component unit of the County and is discretely presented
based on the fact that it is a legally separate entity for which the County is financially
accountable. Separate financial statements for ECMCC can be obtained from ECMCC, 462
Grider Street, Buffalo, NY 14215.

Other Discretely Presented Component Units:

The Auxiliary Services Corporation of Erie Community College, Inc. (the “ECC Auxiliary
Corporation”), and the Erie Community College Foundation, Inc. (the “ECC Foundation™)
ar¢ both included as discretely presented component units of the County’s primary
government based on the fact that they are legally separate entities for which the College and
County are financially accountable. They receive or hold economic resources that are
significant to, and can be accessed by, the College that are entirely or almost entirely for the
direct benefit of its constituents (students).

'The purpose of the ECC Auxiliary Corporation, a New York nonprofit corporation, is to
promote and cultivate educational and social relations through the operation of bookstores,
on-campus dining services, vending facilities, childcare, and student centers for the
convenience of the students, faculty and staff of the College. The ECC Auxiliary
Corporation is funded through sales of merchandise and food, federal and state grants, and
other fees. Separate financial statements can be obtained from the Auxiliary Services
Corporation of Erie Community College, Inc., Executive Director, 4041 Southwestern Blvd.,
Orchard Park, NY 14127.

The ECC Foundation is a New York State nonprofit corporation established to support the
College. Its purpose is to raise, receive, and administer all private gifts and program services
for the College, its programs, and its students. Separate financial statements can be obtained
from Erie Community College Foundation, Inc., Executive Director, 121 Ellicott Street,
Buffalo, NY 14203.

The Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation, Inc. (“ILDC”)is a
legally separate entity of which the County, acting by and through the County Executive, is
the sole member. Itis discretely presented in the County’s financial statements because the
County is financially accountable for it. The ILDC is managed by its Board of Directors.

In 2009, ILDC by—laws and organizing documents were changed and specific activities first
became under the direct govemnance of the County. These changes allow the ILDC to
provide tax-exempt bond financing for not-for-profit organizations. Such debt of the ILDC
can never be the debt of the County or any political subdivision thereof and can only be paid
out of specific revenues and receipts of the ILDC. The ILDC provides no services to the
County. Separate financial statements can be obtained from Buffalo and Erie County
Industrial Land Development Corporation Inc., Chief Operating Officer, 275 Oak Street,
Buffalo, NY 14203,
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2.

Blended Component Units

Erie County Fiscal Stability Authority (“ECFSA”) is included as a blended component unit
of the County’s primary government pursuant to GASB because exclusion would be
misleading. The ECFSA was created to monitor and oversee the finances of the County.
Agencies and departments examined by the ECFSA’s activities include all of the County’s
departments and sewer districts, the College and the Library. It reports using the
governmental model and its general fund is reported as part of the County’s special revenue
funds.

The ECFSA is a corporate governmental agency and instrumentality of the State of New
York (the “State™) constituting a public benefit corporation created by the Erie County Fiscal
Stability Authority Act, Chapter 182 of the Laws of 2005, as supplemented by Chapter 183
of the Laws of 2005 (the “Act”™). The Act became effective July 12, 2005,

The ECFSA is governed by seven directors, each appointed by the Governor, including one
each appointed upon the recommendation of the Majority Leader of the State Senate, the
Speaker of the State Assembly and the State Comptroller. The Governor also designates the
chairperson and vice-chairperson from among the directors.

The ECFSA has power under the Act to monitor and oversee the finances of Erie County,
and upon declaration of a *“Control Period” as defined in the Act, additional oversight
authority. The ECFSA is also empowered to issue its bonds and notes for various County
purposes, defined in the Act as “Financeable Costs.”

On November 3, 2006, the Authority imposed a control period on the County in accordance
with Section 3595(1)(e) of New York Public Authorities Law through resolution 06-49. The
resolution empowered the ECFSA to operate with its maximum authorized complement of
control and oversight powers over County finances. During a control period all County
contracts of $50,000 or more and filling of any positions are subject to ECFSA approval and
ECFSA has the power to approve or reject all proposed County borrowings and the County
may not borrow without formal ECFSA approval. In addition, the ECFSA has the right to
freeze wages, although it has not elected to exercise that right. On June 2, 2009, the ECFSA
revoked the control period and reverted to an advisory status with limited control and
oversight powers over County finances.

In 2011, the ECFSA issued serial bonds to assist ECMCC in the construction of a new
residential health care facility. Loan agreements were executed whereby the ECFSA loaned
the proceeds to the County, who in turn loaned the monies to ECMCC. The facility was
opened in February 2013.

Revenues of the ECFSA consist of sales tax revenues, defined as net collections from sales
and compensating use taxes, penalties and interest authorized by the State and imposed by
the County on the sales and use of tangible personal property and services in the County
(“Sales Tax Revenues™), and investment earnings on money and investments on deposit in
various ECFSA accounts. Sales tax revenues collected by the State Comptroller for transfer
to the ECFSA are not subject to appropriation by the State or County. Revenues of the
ECFSA that are not required to pay debt service, operating expenses and other costs of the
ECFSA are payable to the County as frequently as practicable. Separate financial statements
for ECFSA can be obtained from the Erie County Fiscal Stability Authority, 295 Main
Street, Room 946, Buffalo, NY, 14203.
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Erie Tobacco Asset Securitization Corporation (“ETASC”) is a special purpose local
development corporation organized under the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law of the State of

New York and is an instrumentality of, but separate and apart from the County. ETASC was
imcorporated for the sole purpose of issuing tobacco settlement asset backed bonds in order
to provide funds to purchase from the County all of the County’s right, title, and interest in
annual payments to be received in settlement of certain smoking-related litigation. Tobacco
settlement bonds are payable only from the assets of ETASC and are not legal obligations of
the County. Although legally separate and independent of the County, ETASC is considered
an affiliated organization under GASB and reported as a component unit of the County for
financial reporting purposes and, accordingly, is included in the County’s financial
statements. Separate financial statements for ETASC can be obtained from the Erie Tobacco
Asset Securitization Corporation, Treasurer, 95 Franklin Street, Room 1600, Buffalo, NY,
14202.

Related Organizations

County elected officials nominate and confirm the three-member board of the Erie County
Water Authority, (“Water Authority™) and also appoint a voting majority of the board of the
Buffalo Convention Center Management Corporation (“BCCMC”). The County’s
accountability for these legally separate organizations does not extend beyond making the
board appointments. Specifically, the County cannot impose its will on any of these
organizations. In addition, in the case of the Water Authority, no financial operating
assistance is provided to, nor is the County liable for, any debt issued by this public benefit
corporation. In regard to the not-for-profit BCCMC, the entity and the County are parties to
an exchange transaction under which the BCCMC is responsible for operating and managing
the area’s convention center. These related organizations are not component units of the
County and do not meet the basic criteria for inclusion in the County reporting entity.

Joint Ventures

Western Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation

The County is a participant in the Western Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation
(“OTB”), a public benefit corporation established under New York State Racing, Pari-
Mutuel Wagering and Breeding Law. The OTB conducts within the region a system of off-
track pari-mutuel betting on horse races, and distributes net revenues to the participants in
accordance with a predetermined formula. Separate financial data for this joint venture has
been excluded from the financial statements, consistent with GASB. Additional information
about this joint venture is presented in Note X VII,

Buftalo Erie Niagara Land Improvement Corporation

The Buffalo Erie Niagara Land Improvement Corporation (“BENLIC”) was organized on
June 6, 2012, pursuant to Article 16 of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law of the State of
New York. BENLIC was formed through a joint venture of the County of Erie and Cities of
Buffalo, Lackawanna, and Tonawanda. BENLIC was created to confront and alleviate the
problems distressed properties cause to communities by supporting municipal and regional
revitalization efforts and strategically acquiring, improving, assembling, and selling
distressed, vacant, abandoned, and/or tax-delinquent properties. Separate financial data for
this joint venture has been excluded from the financial statements, consistent with GASB.
Additional information about this joint venture is presented in Note X VIL.
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C.

Basis of Presentation — Government-wide Financial Statements

While separate government-wide and fund financial statements are presented, they are interrelated.
The governmental activities column incorporates data from govermmental funds, while business-type
activities incorporate data from the government’s enterprise funds. Separate financial statements are
provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are
excluded from the government-wide financial statements.

The County has five discretely presented component units, with two major component units being
shown in separate columns and three nonmajor component units being aggregated into a single
column in the government-wide financial statements,

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are interfund services provided and used such as
Utilities Aggregation Fund billings to other funds. Eliminations of these charges would distort the
direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concemed.

Basis of Presentation —~ Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the County’s funds, including its fiduciary
funds and blended component units. Separate statements for each fund category—governmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary—are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major
govemmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental
and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund — the principal operating fund that includes all operations not required to be
recorded in other funds,

ECFSA General Fund — used to account for all of the operations of the ECFSA, included as
a blended component unit. This fund accounts for sales tax revenues received by ECFSA and
for general operating expenditures of ECFSA.

The County reports the following major proprietary fund:

Erie Community College — resources received and used for college purposes are accounted
for through the College. The College is not a legally separate entity from the County. A fiscal
year ending August 31 is mandated by New York State law for the College. Accordingly,
financial information for the College is presented as of and for the 2015 fiscal year then
ended.

The College does not account for certain capital projects, certain capital assets or certain
indebtedness. These are direct functions of the County and are reported within the
governmental activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.
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Additional information as excerpted from the College’s financial statements is as follows:

The County Executive and the County Legislature approve the College’s annual
budget, with the County providing funding for one-half and approximately one-fifth
of capital and operating costs, respectively.

Equipment of the College has been included in the business-type activities column
in the statement of net position. This equipment is recorded at cost or estimated
historical cost. Donated assets are stated at estimated fair value as of the date
received.

Additionally, the County reports a fiduciary fund type that is used to account for assets held by the
County in a custodial capacity:

Agency Fund -~ used to account for money and property received and held in the capacity of
custodian or agent. The Agency Fund is custodial in nature and does not involve
measurement of results of operations.

During the course of operations the County has activity between funds for various purposes. Any
residual balances outstanding at year-end are reported as due from/to other funds and advances
to/from other funds. While these balances are reported in fund financial statements, certain
eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide financial statements. Balances
between the funds included in governmental activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is
included as internal balances in the governmental activities column. Similarly, balances between the
funds included in business-type activities (i.e., the enterprise funds) are climinated so that only the net
amount is included as internal balances in the business-type activities colurmn.

Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources between funds. In
fund financial statements these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers in/out. While
reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the
government-wide financial statements. Transfers between the funds included in governmental
activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as transfers in the governmental
activities column. Similarly, balances between the funds included in business-type activities are
eliminated so that the net amount is included as transfers in the business-type activities column.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Aeeounting

Measurement focus is the determination of what is expressed in reporting an entity’s financial
performance and position, (i.e., expenditures or expenses). A particular measurement focus is
accomplished both by considering what resources will be measured and the basis of accounting.

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues, expenditures/expenses, and the related assets, deferred
outflows / inflows of resources, and liabilities are recognized in the accounts and reported in the
financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless
of the measurement focus.

Accrual Basis — The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless
of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which
they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been 1met.
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The proprietary funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. The agency fund has no measurement focus but utilizes the accrual basis of
accounting for reporting its assets and liabilities.

Modified Accrual Basis — Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this basis
of accounting, revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues
are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafier to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the County considers revenues to
be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period (60-day rule).
Revenues from federal, state, or other grants designated for specific County expenditure are
recognized when the related expenditures are incurred.

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and
judgments and claims, are recorded only when payment is due and expenditures for inventory-type
iterns and for prepayments (except retirement) are recognized at the time of the disbursements.
Property taxes, sales and use taxes, state and federal aid and various grant program revenues |
associated with the curent fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have

been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be

measurable and available only when cash is received by the government, subject to the 60-day rule

noted above.

F. Budgetary Information

Annual appropriated budgets are adopted and employed for control of the General Fund; the Road,
Sewer, Downtown Mall, and E-911 Special Revenue Funds; the Utilities Aggregation Enterprise
Fund; and the Debt Service Fund, minimally detailed to the department and account level. These
budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP, except that encumbrances are reported as
budgetary expenditures in the year of incurrence of commitment to purchase in the General Fund, the
enumerated Special Revenue Funds and the Debt Service Fund. All unencumbered appropriations
lapse at the end of the fiscal year. Budgetary comparisons presented in this report are on the
budgetary basis and represent the budget as modified. Annual appropriated budgets are not employed
for the Grants and Community Development Special Revenue Funds.

G. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance
1. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

All highly liquid investinents with an original maturity date of thres months or less are
considered to be cash equivalents. Investments are stated at fair value, the amount at whicha
financial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties.

2. Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Restricted cash and cash equivalents represent restricted fund balance and unspent proceeds
of debt.
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Prepaid Items and Inventories

Certain payments to vendors and the New York State and Local Employees' Retiremnent
System reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid
items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. The cost of prepaid items is
recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.

The cost of all supplies inventories are recorded as expenditures/expenses when purchased
rather than when consumed.

Capital Assets

All capital assets which are acquired or constructed for general governmental purposes are
reported as expenditures in the fund that finances the asset acquisition and are accounted for
and reported in the government-wide financial statements as capital assets, if they meet the
County’s capitalization criteria. These statements also contain the County’s infrastructure
assets that are required to be capitalized under GAAP. Infrastructure assets include public
domain assets such as roads, bridges, and sewer systems. Such assets are recorded at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets
are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation. Major outlays for capital assets
and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. The cost of normal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset
lives are not capitalized. Equipment with an initial individual cost equal to or greater than
$10,000 and an estimated useful life of three or more years is capitalized. All purchases of
library books are capitalized because there is no minimum capitalization threshold.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units,
are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Description Estimated Lives
Improvements Other Than Buildings 5 - 25 years
Buildings and Improvements 15 - 40 years
Infrastructure 20 - 100 years
Library Collections 5-10 years

The Buffalo and Erie County Public Library has a rare book collection that is classified as a
Work of Art and Historical Treasure for financial reporting purposes. This collection is
deemed an inexhaustible asset, and therefore, is not depreciated.

When capital assets are retired, or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated
depreciation are removed from the accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in
income for the period in the government-wide statements. Amortization of capital leases is
computed using the straight-line method over the lease term or the estimated useful lives of
the assets, whichever is shorter. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred,;
significant renewals and betterments are capitalized.

The capital outlays character classification is employed only for expenditures reported in the
Capital Projects Fund. Routine capital expenditures in the General Fund and other
governmental funds are included in the appropriate functional category (for example, the
purchase of a new police vehicle included as part of expenditures-public safety). At times,
amounts reported as capital outlays in the Capital Project Fund will also include non-
capitalized, project-related costs (for example, furnishings).
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5.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a
future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/
expenditure) until then. The primary government has three items that qualify for reporting in
this category in the government-wide statement of net position. One is the deferred charge on
refunding which results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its
reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the
refunded or refunding debt. Another relates to pensions. This represents the effect of the net
change in the County’s proportion of the collective net pension asset or liability, the
difference during the measurement periods between the County’s contributions and its
proportionate share of the total contribution to the pension systems not included in the
pension expense, and any contributions to the pension systems made subsequent to the
measurement date, The third relates to the deferred outflow on ETASC’s forward purchase
agreement swap relating to the accumulated increase in its fair value.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred
inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.
The County has two items that qualify for reporting in this category. The first, unavailable
revenue, arises under a modified accrual basis of accounting. The governmental funds report
unavailable revenues from property taxes. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an
inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. In addition, another
item represents the effect of the net change in the County’s proportion of the collective net
pension liability and the difference during the measurement periods between the County’s
contributions and its proportionate share of total contributions to the pension systems not
included in pension expense and is reported on the government-wide financial statements
only.

Net Position Flow Assumption

Sometimes the County will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g.,
restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the
amounts to report as restricted—net position and unrestricted—net position in the government-
wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the
order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the County’s policy to
consider restricted-net position to have been depleted before unrestricted—net position is
applied.

Fund Balance Flow Assumption

Sometimes the County will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and
unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In
order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned
fund balance in the governmental fund financial staterments, a flow assumption must be made
abou( the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the County’s policy
to consider restricted fund balance to have been depleted before using any of the components
of unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the components of unrestricted fund balance can
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be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned
fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last,

Fund Balance Policies

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of
any limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The County itself can
establish limitations on the use of resources through either a commitment (committed fund
balance) or an assignment (assigned fund balance). The committed fund balance
classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined by
a formal action of the County’s highest level of decision-making authority. The Erie County
Legislature is the highest level of decision~-making authority for the County that can, by
adoption of a Legislative Resolution prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund balance.
Once adopted, the Iimitation imposed by the resolution remains in place until a similar action
is taken (the adoption of another resolution) to rescind or revise the limitation.

Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the County
for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as committed. The
Legislature authorizes assigned amounts of fund balance.

Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses

Program Revenues

Program revenues include: (1} charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function, and (2)
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements
of a particular function. All taxes, including those deducted for specific purposes, and other
internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues.

Property Tax Revenue Recognition

The County-wide property tax is levied by the County Legislature effective January 1 of the
year the taxes are recognizable as revenue. Taxes become a lien on the related property on
January I of the year for which they are levied. Accordingly, property tax is only recognized
as revenue in the year for which the levy is made, and to the extent that such taxes are
received within the reporting period or 60 days thereafter in the fund financial statements.

Delinquent property taxes not collected at year-end (excluding collections in the 60-day
subsequent period) are recorded as unearned revenue in the fund financial statements. The
portion of delinquent property taxes for prior years estimated to be uncollectible at December
31,2013, amounted to $42,027,818. This amount has been recorded as an allowance against
the property taxes receivable account.

Uneamed Revenue

Resources obtained that have not met the revenue recognition criteria for government-wide
or fund financial purposes are recorded as a liability.
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L

4.

Other

Compensated Absences

Most employees are granted vacation, personal, and sick leave and earn compensatory time
in varying amounts. When they leave service, employees are entitled to payment for
accurnulated vacation and unused compensatory time at various rates subject to certain
maximum limitations. In addition, depending on the applicable collective bargaining
agreement, retirees may be eligible to receive a direct cash payment for a portion of unused
sick time upon retirement.

Compensated absences for governmental fund type employees are reported as a liability and
expense in the government-wide financial statements. Governmental funds recognize the
expenditure when paid. For proprietary fund type employees, the accumulation is recorded as
an accrued liability and/or other long-term obligation of the proprietary fund type.

Payment of compensated absences recorded in the government-wide financial statements is
dependent upon many factors; therefore, timing of future payment is not readily
determinable. However, management believes that sufficient resources will be made
available for the payment of compensated absences when such payments become due.

Pensions

The County is mandated by New York State law to participate in the New York State
Teacher’s Retirement System (“TRS”) and the New York State Local Employees’
Retirement System (“ERS”). For purposes of measuring the net position (asset)/liability,
deferred outflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about
the fiduciary net position of the defined benefit pension plans, and changes thereof, have
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the respective defined benefit
pension plans. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value. More information regarding pensions included in
Note IX.

Proprietary Funds Operating and Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing educational services and
the purchase and resale of utilities in connection with the proprietary fund’s ongoing
operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses. The principal operating revenues of the College, the
County’s major proprietary fund, are charges to smdents for tition and fees. Operating
expenses for the College include employee wages and benefits and student scholarships.

Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also affect
the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include the following items:
cash on hand; cash in checking and time accounts; and certain short-term items maturing
three months or less from the date acquired, as permitted by State statute.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts were reclassified from ECFSA’s financial statements to conform to the
County’s reporting presentation. In the ECFSA’s statement of revenue, expenditures, and
change in fund balances, $60,996,396 representing principal and interest revenue received
from the County relating to mirror bonds and a revenue anticipation note purchased by the
ECFSA, and $424,722,800 representing sales tax revenue and other distributions to the
County, were reclassified as transfers in and transfers out, respectively.

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements

The County implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”™) Statement
GASB Statements No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions—an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 27; and No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions
Made Subseguent to the Measurement Date—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68.
GASB Statements No. 68 and No. 71 improve accounting and financial reporting by
governments for pensions.

Future Impacts of Accounting Pronouncements

The County has not completed the process of evaluating the impact that will result from
adopting GASB Statements No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application; No. 76, The
Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments;
No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures; No. 78, Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-
Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans; and No. 79, Certain External Investinent Pools
and Pool Participants, effective for the year ending December 31,2016, No. 73, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of
GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68;
No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans;
No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units — an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 14, No. 81, Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements; and No. 82, Pension
Issues—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73, effective for the
year ending December 31, 2017, and No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pensions, effective for the year ending December
31, 2018. The County is, therefore, unable to disclose the impact that adopting GASB
Statement Nos. 72, 73, 74, 75, 76, 77, 78, 79, 80, 81 and 82 will have on its financial
position and results of operations.
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II - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A,

Budgetary Information

The County follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

1. In accordance with the County Charter and Administrative Code, no later than October 15,
the County Executive submits a tentative operating and capital budget which details
proposed expenditures and the proposed means of financing to the Erie County Legislature
for the fiscal year commencing the following January 1. The College budget is not included
in the County Executive’s tentative budget, since it is separately adopted during the first
County legislative meeting in July for the fiscal year commencing September 1.

2, After public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments, the County Legislature
{goveming board) adopts the budget no later than the second Tuesday in December.

3. The County Executive is authorized to make budget transfers within the same administrative
unit up to a cumulative total of $10,000 between accounts or line items. Any proposed
transfer which would result in an increase exceeding $10,000 in any one line item in the
budget, as adopted during the fiscal year or would affect any salary rate or salary total, would
need prior approval by resolution of the County Legislature. In no instance shall a transfer
be made from appropriations for debt service, and no appropriations may be reduced below
any amount which is required by law to be appropriated.

4. The Emergency Response Special Revenue Fund was established to account for revenues
received from the Federal Emergency Management Agency and expenditures associated with
the cleanup of major storm damage that occurred in October 2006 and November 2014.

5. Capital Projects Funds are subject to project budgets determined primarily by the bonding
authorizations used to fund a particular project rather than annual budgetary appropriations.
These budgets do not lapse at year-end; rather, they lapse upon termination of the project.

6. Expenditures within the General, Special Revenue, Utilities Aggregation Enterprise, and the
Debt Service Funds may not legally exceed the amount appropriated for such accounts
within a department. During the year, numerous supplementary appropriations were
necessary.

Individual governmental fund comparisons of budgetary and actual data at the legal level of control
established by the adopted budget (i.e., minimally the department and account level) are not
presented in this report for those funds with annual appropriated budgets due to the excessive detail
involved. However, a separate budgetary comparison report is available which contains this
information. This report can be obtained from the Erie County Office of the Comptroller, 95 Franklin
Street, Room 1100, Buffalo, New York 14202.

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or services.
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the
expenditure of monies are recorded for budgetary control purposes to reserve that portion of the
applicable appropriations, is employed in all County funds except the Enterprise Funds, and the
Agency Fund. Outstanding encumbrances at year end, except for grant-related commitments that are
not reported in the financial statements, are presented for GAAP reporting purposes as assignments of
fund balances, and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be
honored during the subsequent year. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.
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The County reports its budgetary status with the actual data including encumbrances as charpes
against budgeted appropriations. Following is a reconciliation of the budgetary basis (i.e. non-GAAP)
and the GAAP basis operating results (dollars in thousands):

General Fund
Excess of revenues and other financing sources over

expenditures and other financing uses - GAAP basis . ........ $ 335
Less:

Encumbrances at December31,2045................... 2,889
Plus:

Encumbrances atJanuary 1,2015...................... 2420

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over
expenditures and other financing uses - basis of budgeting.. . .. 5 134

Budget columns presented in the accompanying financial statements reflect deficiencies of revenues
and other financing sources over expenditures and other financing uses. These deficiencies are caused
by the anticipated use of prior-year’s fund balance, which had been assigned for 2015 expenditures
through the budget process.

Commitments related directly to the Grants and the Community Development Special Revenue Funds
in the amounts of $4,238,987 and $1,586,308, respectively, at December 31, 2015, are not reported
on the GAAP financial statements. Budget appropriations are not made available for these
commitments until grant revenues are recognized at the time of expenditure.

B. Deficit Unassigned Fund Balances

Deficit unassigned fund balance amounts in the E-911,Grants and the Community Development
Special Revenue Funds in the amounts of $43,442, $484,726 and $19,483, respectively, are caused
by nonspendable fund balance amounts recorded for prepaid items.

C. Deficit Net Position

The Governmental Activities reported a total net deficit of approximately $4,873,000 at December
31, 2015, resulting primarily from ETASC’s net deficit of $277,116,468 that is caused by its
recognition of bonds payable with no offsetting capital assets.

The College Proprietary Fund reported a total net position deficit of $13,917,794 that primarily

represents the effect of GASB required recognition of other post-employment benefits annually. It is
anticipated that this trend will continue.

III - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

Primary Government, Agency Fund and Library Component Unit

Auvailable cash of the County is deposited and invested in accordance with the County’s own written
investment guidelines which have been established by the Comptroller’s Office, approved by the County
Legislature and are in compliance with provisions of applicable State statutes. The ECFSA does not have a
formal investment policy.
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Agency Fund bank accounts are maintained at financial institutions where monies of the County’s other funds
are also on deposit. In addition, the Library does not maintain a separate bank account; instead, it participates
in the pooled cash of the County. The banks calculate and report FDIC coverage and collateral requirements
for the County’s Agency Fund, the County’s other funds and Library together, separately from that of the
College.

Interest Rate Risk — As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from fluctuating interest
rates, it is the County’s policy to generally limit investments to municipal bonds or investments of 180 days or
less.

Credit Risk — In compliance with New York State law, it is the County’s policy to limit its investments to
obligations of the United States of America, obligations guaranteed by agencies of the United States of
America where the payment of principal and interest are guaranteed by the United States of America,
obligations of the State of New York, time deposit accounts and certificates of deposit issued by a bank or
trust company located in and authorized to do business in New York State and certain joint or cooperative
investment programs.

Custodial Credit Risk — For investments, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty,
the County will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. A margin of 2% or higher of the market value of purchased securities in
repurchase transactions must be maintained and the securities must be held by a third party in the County’s
name. For deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the County’s deposits may not be
returned to it. Collateral is required for deposits and certificates of deposit in an amount equal to or greater
than the amount of all deposits not covered by federal deposit insurance. Banks can satisfy collateral
requirements by furnishing a letter of credit, a surety bond, or by pledging eligible securities as specified in
Section 10 of New York State General Municipal Law. New York State Education Law does not require
collateral for college checking accounts, unless the Board of Trustees deems it necessary. If collateral is
required, it can be in the form of a surety bond or obligations of the United States, the State, or any
municipality or college of the State. Certain balances for accounts held in trust are collateralized by the State
of New York.

Concentration of Credit Risk — To promote competition in rates and service cost, and to limit the risk of
institutional failure, County deposits and investments are placed with multiple institutions. The general rule is
not to place more than $100,000,000 or 50% of the County’s total investment portfolio, whichever is less, in
overnight investments with any one institution.

Deposits - The County deposits cash into a number of bank accounts. Monies must be deposited in demand or
time accounts or certificates of deposit issued by FDIC-insured commercial banks or trust companies located
within the State. Some of the County’s accounts are required by various statutes and borrowing restrictions for
specific funds, while the remainder are used for County operating cash and for investment purposes.

As of December 31, 2015 (August 31, 2015 as to the College), except for $6,461, the bank deposits of the
Primary Govermment, Library, and Agency Fund were either FDIC insured or fully collateralized with
securities held by the pledging financial institution’s agent in the County’s name.

Cash and Cash Equivalents — All highly liquid investments with an original maturity date of three months or
less are considered to be cash equivalents. Existing policies require that any underlying securities for
repurchase transactions must be only federal obligations. Such obligations are explicitly guaranteed by the
U.S. Government and therefore not considered to have credit risk. At December 31, 2015, the fair value of
money market accounts was $208,880,571 which were fully collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institution’s agent in the County’s name.
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Investments ~ All investments are carried at fair value and are held by a third party in the County’s, ETASC’s
or ECFSA’s name, Investments for the Primary Government at year-end are shown below (dollars in
thousands):

Fair

Value
Municipalbonds .. ................ $ 200
Institutional liquidity funds ........... 813
Corporate commercial paper........ 19,559
Treasury securities ... ............ 38,986
Totalinvesiments . ................ $ 59,558

The County’s investment in municipal bonds at December 31, 2015 consists of $200,000 of Gulf Coast Waste
Disposal Authority of Texas revenue bonds maturing September 1, 2025 that were rated Aaa by Moody’s.

ETASC’s investment in corporate commercial paper at December 31, 2015 consisted of $19,559,216 of
General Electric Capital Corporation Commercial Paper which was rated P-1 by Moody’s. Rating
information for the ETASC’s $812,447 investment in Blackrock Liquidity Funds was not available.
ECFSA had $38,986,410 in U.S. Treasury securities at December 31, 2015.

ECMCC Component Unit

The ECMCC maintains various accounts for depositing, disbursing and investing its funds. The ECMCC’s
investments are made in accordance with State regulations and its investment guidelines.

Cash and Cash Equivalents — Include cash on hand and monies deposited in checking and money market
accounts. Excluding assets whose use is limited, cash and cash equivalents total $30,611,000 as of December
31, 2015.

Interest Rate Risk — As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from fluctuating interest
rates, it is the ECMCC’s policy to generally limit investments to maturities of less than one year.
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Investments — All investments are carried at fair value, and are categorized as insured or uninsured, and
collateralized by securities held by the pledging financial institution in the ECMCC’s name. The ECMCC’s
investments and restricted cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2015 are shown below (dollars in

thousands).
Fair
Value
Money market mutual funds, bank accounts and deposits .. ... .. $ 39,031
Marketable equity securities . ... ... ... i e 16,365
U.S. Government and Agency Obligations . . . ................ 40,528
Corporate bonds . . ... ... .o 6,948
Shorttermfixedincome . ... ... . . . . 33,381
Foundation ComponentUnit....... ... ..., 903
RHEC ComponentUnit......... ... o, 1,731
Physician Endowment Component Unit .. .................... 10,567
Total investments and restricted cash and cash equivalents . . . . .. $ 149,454
Fair
Value
Investments -unrestricted. . ... .. .. i $ 13,062
Restricted cashand cash equivalents . ... .. ................. 136,392
Total . .. s $ 149,454

Other Componernt Units

Erie Community College Foundation, Inc. — The portfolio of investments is carried at their fair value. For
donated investments, costs are determined to be fair value at the date of gift.

Fair values and net unrealized gains and losses pertaining to the investment portfolio as of August 31, 2015

are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Fair

Cost Value
Fixedingome . ........ ..., $ 1,404 % 1,391
international equities . .. .. ............. 413 489
Domesticstocks . ................. ... 1,631 1,877
Alternates . ............. ... i, 55 63
Total, ..o o e $ 3,603 $ 3,930
Nefunrealizedgain.................... .......... }§ 427
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IV - RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Primary Government

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents — At December 31, 2015 the County reported the following restricted
cash and cash equivalents (dollars in thousands):

Fair
Value
Handicapped parking .. . .......... oo el 5 154
Capital expenditures .. ... ... .o i, 88,689
Total oo § 88843

ECMCC Component Unit

Assets Whose Use is Limited — Assets whose use is limited are reported as restricted cash and cash
equivalents at December 31, 2015 and consist of the following (dollars in thousands):

Fair

Value
Patient and resident's trustcash..................... ... 3 428
Restricted for debt service principal and interest . . .......... 11,830
Equipmentfunds............ L 6,636
Designated for retiree heakth obligations . .. ............... 24,831
Designated for selfinsurance . . ..........ccoiiivnnn.. 24,580
Designated for long-term investment.. ... .............. ... 23,617
Designated for DSRIP program. ... ........ ... i, 13,691
NYS voluntary defined contribution plan escrow. ... ......... 95
Foundation ComponentUnit .. ......... ... ... ........... 903
Physictans Endowment ComponentUnit. .. ............... 10,567
Restricted - insured workers' compensation collateral . . . . . .. 19,114
Total. .o e e $ 136,392

V - PROPERTY TAXES

The countywide property tax is levied by the County upon the taxable real property in the towns and cities in
the County in late December of each year at the last meeting of the County Legislature and becomes a lien on
the next succeeding January 1. Such taxes are collected by the respective collection officers in each town and
in the cities of Lackawanna and Tonawanda until the date established for return of the tax rolls to the County,
which can be no later than September 15. For the City of Buffalo, the County collects these taxes from the
lien date.

With respect to the cities, the County taxes are due by February 15, and penalties are imposed as follows:
1.5% prior to March 1; 3% prior to March 16; 4.5% prior to April 1; 6% prior to April 16;7.5% prior to May
1; and 1.5% additional each month thereafter. The cities each levy and collect their city taxes, and the County
is not responsible for any unpaid city taxes. The County is responsible only for uncollected County taxes
levied in such cities.

With respect to the towns, the countywide property tax is levied by the County together with town property
taxes, which include special distriet, fire district, and highway taxes. In towns of the first class, taxes are due
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without penalties by February 15. Penalties are 1.5% prior to March 1; 3% prior to March 16; 4.5% prior to
April 2; 6% prior to April 16; 7.5% prior to May 1; and 1.5% additional for each month thereafter. In towns
of the second class, taxes are due without penalty within ten days after receipt of the tax roll by the respective
collection agency. Penalties are 1.5% prior to March 16 unless waived; 7.5% prior to May 1; and 1.5%
additional each month thereafter, All towns first retain their share of taxes from collections and remit the

balance to the County. The County is responsible for uncollected taxes of all subordinate jurisdictions, except
for the three cities.

The County levies taxes for most school districts throughout the County and is responsible for uncollected
school district taxes outside the cities of Buffalo, Lackawanna, and Tonawanda.

Additionally, at the option of villages within the County, the County may also be responsible for uncollected
village taxes.

Constitutional Tax Limit

The amount that may be raised by the countywide tax levy on real estate in any fiscal year (for purposes other
than debt service on County indebtedness) is limited to one and one-half per centum (subject to increase up to
two per centum by resolution of the County Legislature) of the five-year average full valuation of taxable real
estate of the County, per New York State statutes. On November 13, 1978, a local law became effective
which limits the maximum amount of real estate taxes which can be levied other than for debt service to one
per centum of such average full valuation of all the taxable real estate within the County.

The County constitutional tax limit (per New Y ork State statutes) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015
1s computed as follows (dollars in thousands):

Five-year average full valuation

of taxable real estate (2011-2015)....... $47,664,655
Taxlimit@1.5% ..o § 714970
Statutoryadditions ....... ...l 72,514
TotaltaXingpower. ... .o, 787,484
Totallevy. ... ..o i i {257,605}
Taxmargin .......uieee e $ 529879
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VI - RECEIVABLES AND DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

ey

All major revenues of the County’s govermnmental funds are considered “susceptible to accrual” based on the
60 day rule under the modified accrual basis. These include property tax, sales tax, state and federal aid, and
various grant program revenues. The proprietary funds record revenues using the accrual basis of accounting.

Major revenues accrued by the County in the various governmental fund types at December 31, 2015 include
sales and use taxes in the amount of $53,163,439; state and federal assistance for social services of
$113,282,485; and other state and federal aid (including grants) approximating $51,914,416.

Receivables at year-end of the County’s major individual funds and nonmajor funds in the aggregate,
including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Receivables and due from Other
other governments - General ECFSA Governmental
Governmental Funds Fund General Funds Total
Real property taxes, interest,
penaltiesandliens .................... $ 122,503 $ - $ 16 $ 122519
Salesandusetax..................... - 53,163 - 53,163
Federal and state assistance for
social services programs .............. 113,282 - - 113,282
Other federal and stateaid .. ............ 33,555 - 18,360 51,915
Other. .. 9,682 - 34,173 43,865
Grossreceivables ... ................ 279,032 53,163 52,549 384,744
Less: allowances for uncollectibles . . . . . 42028 - - 42,028
Totalreceivables . ................. $ 237004 % 53,163 § 52543 § 342,716
Receivables and due from Utilities
other governments - College Aggregation
Proprietary Funds 8/31/15 Fund Total
Accountsreceivable . .................. $ 9,891 $ 142 % 10,033
Other. ... i 1,651 578 2,229
Grossreceivables . .. ................ 11,542 720 12,262
Less: allowances for uncollectibles . . . .. 7,980 - 7,880
Totalreceivables .. ................ $ 3,562 $ 720 5 4,282
All Governmental and Proprietary Fund receivables are expected to be collected within one year.
Comm. 19E-17
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VII - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2015 was as follows (dollars in thousands):

A, Primary Government
1. Governmental Activities
Balance Reclassifications and Balance
11115 Increases Decreases 12431/15
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
=T 3 o $ 3108 % 440 % - % 31125
Constructioninprogress.................... 90,806 61,141 (92,803) 58,144
Total capital assets, not being depreciated . . . .. 121,881 61,181 (92,803} 90,269
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements . . ............... 580,246 59,740 - 639,986
Transportationnetwork . . ......... ... ... ... 599,034 31,447 - 630,481
Sewernetwork . . ... e i 290,391 2,623 - 293,014
Improvements other than buildings . ........... 28,701 - - 28,701
Machineryand equipment . .. ....... ... ... 122,617 1,991 {4,680) 119,928
Total capital assets, being depreciated . . ... ... 1,620,989 95,801 {4,680} 1,712,110
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements .. ............... (338,541) (17,130} - (355,671)
Transportationnetwork . .. .............. ..., (346,496) (26,117) - (372,613)
Sewernetwork. . ..., (98,637) (4,632) - (103,269)
Improvements other than buildings .. .......... {17,885) (1,475) - (119,360}
Machineryand equipment . ........ ... ... ... {89,878) (7,161) 4,181 (102,858)
Total accumulated depreciation . ............ (901,437) (56,515) 4,181 (853,771)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net .. . .. 719,552 39,286 {499) 758,339
Governmental activities capital assets, net......... $ 841443 $ 100467 $§ (93,302) $ 848,608

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the govemmental acivities as follows:

Governmental activities;

Generalgovernment. . ..., .. oot $ 12,813
Publicsafety .. ... oo 7,995
Health. . ... . e e 391
Transportation. ... ... ... 26,900
Economic assistance and opportunity . ............... 37
Culture and recreation . ... .. ..o i i 1,115
Education . ....coo i e 1,699
Home and community service . ..................... 5,565
Total governmental activities depreciation expense . ...... $ 56,515
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2. Business-type Activities*

Balance Reciassifications and Balance
9/1/14 Increases Decreases 8/31/15
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Construction iINprogress .. ..ov v vveiiennans $ 5,668 3 6,311 $ (6,097 § 5,882
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Building improvements . ....................... 19,374 6,097 - 25471
Land improvements ... ...... ... ... ... . ..., 64 - - 64
Equipmient . . ... e 23,368 1,074 (352) 24,090
Librarycollections . ............... . ... 2,355 221 (264) 2,312
Total capital assets, being depreciated . . ... .... 45,161 7,392 (616) 51,837
Less accumulated depreciation for;
Building improvements . ........... ... ... (3,553) (1,121} - 4,674)
Landimprovements . .............. ... ....... (30} (3) - (33)
Equipment.......... ... .. ... ... ... . . ... (14,503} (2,638) 348 (16,793}
Librarycollections . ...............coviiin.. .. (1,244) (225) 251 (1,218)
Total accumulated depreciation. .............. (19,330) (3,887} 599 (22,718}
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net. .. ... 25,831 3.405 (16) 28,220
-
3 Business-type activities capital assets, net.......... $ 31499 § 9,716 3 (6113) § 35102
. * The College (August 31, 2015)
Depreciation expense for the College was $3,987,401 for the year ended August 31, 2015.
B. Component Units
£ 1. Library
3 Balance Balance
L 111/15 Increases Decreases 12/31/15
Capitat assets, not being depreciated:
_ Rare bookcollection......................... $ 11314 § 46 & - % 11,360
| Capital assets, being depreciated:
L Machinery, equipment and library materials .. .. ... 57,705 3,064 (3,825) 56,934
Less accumutated depreciation for:
Machinery, equipment and library materials . . ... .. (52,048) (2,678) 3,446 (51,280)
L Total capital assets, being depreciated, net......... 5,657 376 (379) 5,654
Library component unit capital assets, net........... 3 16,971 3 422 $ (379) $ 17,014

Depreciation expense for the Library was $2,677,821 for the year ended December 31, 2015.
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2. ECMCC
Balance Balance
1115 Increases Decreases 1213115
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Construclion inprogress . .................... $ 11,660 $ 11,276 $ (18,371) $ 4,565
Idlepropefty. ... 3,356 - - 3,356
Total capital assets, not being depreciated ... . 15,016 11,276 (18,371) 7,921

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Land and land improvements ................. 16,827 114 3,079 20,020

Buildings and building improvements .......... 401,855 15,613 (3,288) 414,180 E
Fixed/major moveable equipment............. 137,080 9,852 209 147,241
Total capital assets, being depreciated ....... 555,762 25,679 - £81,441

Less accumulated depreciation . .............. {281,353} (27,927) - (309,280)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net . . .. 274,409 (2,248) - 272,161

ECMGCC component unit capital assets, net. . .. .. $289425 $§ 9,028 $ (18,371) $280,082

Depreciation expense for ECMCC was $27,927,000 for the year ended December 31, 2015.

VIIT - PAYABLES, ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTS

Payables at year-end of the County’s major individual funds and nonmajor funds in the aggregate are as
follows (dollars in thousands):

Accounts and retained percentage

payable, accrued liabilities and Other
due to other governments - General ECFSA Governmental
Governmental Funds Fund General Funds Total

Accountspayable .. ............... ..., 9 15,183 $ - % 13,357 3 28,540
Othergovernments . ................... 27,215 - 867 28,082
Health and social service

programs and agencies ... ............ 39,631 - 954 40,585
Retained percentages .. ................ - - 1,846 1,846
Salaries &fringes . . ... . 3,522 - 717 4,239
Other. . ... i e e ns 3,508 35 6,020 9,563

Total . ... 3 89,059 3 35 $ 23,761 $ 112,855

Accounts payable, accrued liabilites

due to other governments and Utifity
fringe benefits payable - current College Aggregation
Proprietary Funds 8/31/15 Fund Total
Accountspayable . .......... ... . ... $ 2,360 % 1,323 $ 3,683
Fringes benefits payable - current .. ... ... 4,899 2 4,901
Other. .. ..t e 8,354 736 s00 =
Total ..o 3 15613 § 2,061 $ 17,674
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IX — PENSION OBLIGATIONS

Backpround

The County participates in the New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System (“ERS™). In
addition, all faculty and administrators of the College have the option of participating in the New York State
Teachers’ Retirement System (“TRS™) or the Teachers’ Insurance and Annuity Association — College
Retirement Equities Fund (“TIAA-CREF”).

A.

Defined Benefit Plans

Plan Descriptions and Benefits Provided

New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System ~ This is a cost-sharing multiple-
employer retirement system. The ERS provides retirement benefits, as well as death and disability
benefits. Obligations of employers and employees to contribute and benefits to employees are
governed by the New York State Retirement and Social Security Law (“NYSRSSL”). As set forth in
the NYSRSSL, the Comptroller of the State of New York (“Comptroller”) serves as sole trustee and
administrative head of the ERS. System benefits are established under the provisions of the
NYSRSSL. Once a public employer elects to participate in the System, the election is irrevocable.
The New York State Constitution provides that pension membership is a contractual relationship and
plan benefits cannot be diminished or impaired. Benefits can be changed for future members only by
enactment of a State statute. The System is included in the State’s financial report as a pension trust
fund. That report, including information with regards to benefits provided, may be found at
www.0sc.state ny.us/retire/publications/index. php or obtained by writing to the New York State and
Local Retirement System, 110 State Street, Albany, NY 12244,

The system is noncontributory, except for those employees who joined the ERS after July 27, 1976
who contribute 3% of their salary for the first ten years of membership and employees who joined on
or after January 10, 2010, who generally contribute 3.0% to 3.5% of their salary for their entire length
of service. Those joining after April 1, 2012 (Tier 6) are required to contribute a percentage ranging
from 3% to 6%, based on salary. Under the authority of the NYSRSSL, the Comptroller annually
certifies the actuarially determined rates expressly used in computing the employer’s contributions
based on the salaries paid during the ERS’s fiscal year ending March 31.

New York State Teachers’ Refirement System — The TRS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer
retirement system. TRS provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries as authorized by the Education Law and Retirement and the New York
State Retirement and Social Security Law (“NYSRSSL”). TRS is governed by a 10 member Board
of Trustees. TRS benefits are established under New York State Law. Membership is mandatory and
automatic for all full-time teachers, teaching assistants, guidance counselors and administrators
employed in New York State Public Schools and BOCES who elect to participate in TRS. Once a
public employer elects to participate in TRS, the election is irrevocable. The New York State
Constitution provides that pension membership is a contractual relationship and plan benefits cannot
be diminished or impaired. Benefits can be changed for future members only by enactment of a State
statute. Additional information regarding TRS may be obtained by writing to the New York State
Teachers’ Retirement System, 10 Corporate Woods Drive, Albany, NY 12211-2395 or by referring to
the NYSSTR Comprehensive Annual Financial Report which can be found on TRS’s website at
WWW.nystrs.org.
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Plan members who joined the TRS before July 27, 1976, are not required to make contributions. Those
joining after July 27, 1976 are required to contribute 3.0% to 3.5% of their annual salary. Employees in the
Systern more than ten years are no longer required to contribute. Pursuant to Article 11 of the Education
Law, rates are established annually by the New York State Teachers’ Retirement Board.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions—At December 31, 2015, the County reported the following liability/(asset) for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability/(asset) for ERS and TRS (dollars in thousands):

Governmental Business-type Business-type
Activities Activities Activities
ERS ERS TRS
Measurementdate ................. March 31, 2015 March 31, 2015 June 30, 2014
Net pension liability/(assef) . ......... $ 30,523 $ 2,965 $ {10,651)
County's portion of {he Plan's
total net pension liability/(asset) . . ... 0.8035185% 0.0877675% 0.0925540%

The net pension liability/(asset) was measured as of March 31, 2015 for ERS and as of June 30, 2014 for
TRS. The total pension liability/(asset) used to calculate the net pension liability/(asset) were determined by
actuarial valuations as of April 1, 2014 and June 30, 2013, respectively, with update procedures used to roll
forward the total net pension liability/(asset) to the measurement dates. The County’s proportion of the net
pension liability/(asset) were based on projections of the County’s long-term share of contributions to the
Systems relative to the projected contributions of all participating members, actuarially determined. This
information was provided by the Systems in reports provided to the County and College. For ERS, the
Library is under the County’s plan. The County determined a percentage allocated to the Library for their
portion of the County’s net pension liability.
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For the year ended December 31, 20135, the County recognized pension expense of $29,716,398 for the ERS,
and an actuarial increase of $419,515 for the TRS. At December 31, 2015, the County reported deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources
(dollars in thousands):

Deferred QOutflows of Resources

Governmental Business-type Business-type
Activities Activities Activities
ERS ERS TRS

Differences between expected and
actual experiences . . ..o $ 977 $ a5 $ -
Net difference between projected and
actual earnings on pension plan investments .... ... 5,301 515 -
Changes in proportion and differences
between the County's contributions and
proportionate share of conkrlbutions . ............. 4 - -
County contributions subsequent
to the measurementdate .......... ... ... ..... 27,703 1,490 2,086

Total ... $ 33,985 $ 2,100 $ 2,086

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Governmental Business-type Primary
Activities Activities Government-
ERS ERS TRS

Differences between expected and
actual experiences .. ... ... . . i $ - $ - 3 156
Net difference between projected and
actual earnings on pension plan investments . . ... .. - - 7,154
Changes in proportion and differences
between the County's contributions and
proportionate share of contributions . .. ........... 2,111 205 18

Total ..o e $ 2,111 3 205 $ 7,328

The County’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of
the net pension liability in the year ended December 31, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in
pension expense as follows (dollars in thousands):

Governmental Business-type Business-type
Year ended Activities Activities Activities
December 31, ERS ERS TRS
2016............. 3 1,043 3 102 $ 1,809
2017 ... 1,043 101 1,809
2018 ... ... e 1,043 101 1,809
2019 . ... 1,042 101 1,809
2020 . ... .. ... ..., - - 20
Thereafter........ - - 71
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Actuarial Assumptions—The total pension liability/(asset) as of the measurement date were
determined by using actuarial valuations as noted in the table below, with update procedures used to
roll forward the total pension liability/(asset) to the measurement date. The actuarial valuations used
the following actuarial assumptions:

ERS TRS

Measurementdate . ......... March 31, 2015 June 30, 2014
Actuarial valuationdate . .. .... April 1, 2014 June 30, 2013
Interestrate . . .............. 7.50% 8.00%
Salaryscale............... 4.90% 4.01%-10.81%
Decrementtables........... April 1, 2005 - July 1, 2005 -

March 31, 2010 June 30, 2010
Inflationrate . .............. 2.70% 3.00%

For ERS, annuitant mortality rates are based on April 1, 2005 —March 31, 2010 System’s experience
with adjustments for mortality improvements based on the Society of Actuaries Scale MP-2014. For
TRS, anmuitant mortality rates are based on July 1, 2005 — June 30, 2010 System experience with
adjustments for mortality improvements based on the Society of Actuaries Scale AA.

For ERS, the actuarial assumptions used in the April 1, 2014 valuation are based on the results ofan
actuarial experience study for the period April 1, 2005 — March 31, 2010. For TRS, the actuarial
assumptions used in the June 30, 2013 valuation are based on the results of an actuarial experience
study for the period July 1, 2005 - June 30, 2010.

The long-term rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building block
method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns net of
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates
of return by each the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best
estimates of the arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the target asset
allocation are summarized below:

Long-Term Expected

Target Allocation Real Rate of Return
ERS TRS ERS TRS

Measurementdate .. ........ March 31, 2015 June 30, 2014
Asset class:
Domestic equities . .......... 38.0% 37.0% 7.3% 7.3%
International equities . . ... ... 13.0% 18.0% 8.6% 8.5%
Privateequity . ............. 10.0% 0.0% 11.0% 0.0%
Realestate................ 8.0% 10.0% 8.3% 5.0%
Alternative investments . . . ... 0.0% 7.0% 0.0% 11.0%
Absolute return strategies . . . . 3.0% 20.0% 6.8% 1.4%
Cpportunistic portfolio . ... ... 3.0% 0.0% 8.6% 0.0%
Realassefs............... 3.0% 0.0% 8.7% 0.0%
Bonds and mortgages ... .... 18.0% 8.0% 4.0% 3.4%
Cash.......... ... ... ... 2.0% 0.0% 2.3% 0.0%
Inflation-indexed bonds . . . . .. 2.0% 0.0% 4.0% 0.0% .

100.0% 100.0% ?
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Discount Rate—-The discount rate used to calculate the total pension liability was 7.5% for ERS and 8.0% for
TRS. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that contributions from plan
members will be made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made at
statutorily required rates, actuarially. Based upon the assumptions, the Systems’ fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore,
the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability/(asset).

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) to the Discount Rate
Assumption—The chart below presents the County’s proportionate share of the net pension liability/(asset)
calculated using the discount rate of 7.5% for ERS and 8.0% for TRS, as well as what the County’s
proportionate share of the net pension liability/(asset) would be if they were calculated using a discount rate
that is one percentage-point lower (6.5% for ERS and 7.0% for TRS) or one percentage-point higher (8.5%
for ERS and 9.0% for TRS) than the current assumption (dollars in thousands):

1% Current 1%
Governmental Activities Decrease Assumption increase
ERS (6.5%) {7.5%) (8.5%)
Employer's proportionate share
ofthe net pension liability/(asset). . ... $ 203,449 $ 30,523 $ (115,469)
1% Current 1%
Business-type Activities Decrease Assumption Increase
ERS (6.5%) (7.5%) (8.5%)
Employer's proportionate share
of the netpension liability/(asset) . .. .. $ 19,764 2,965 $ (11,217)
1% Current 1%
Business-type Activities Decrease Assumption Increase
TRS {7.0%) {8.0%} {9.0%)
Employer's proportionate share
of the net pension liability/(asset}. .. .. % (230) {10,651) $ (19,532)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position—The components of the current-year net pension
liability/(asset) of the employers as of the valuation dates, were as follows (dollars in thousands):

Primary Primary
Government- Government-
ERS TRS Total
Valuationdate ...................... .ol March 31, 2015 June 30, 2014
Employers’ total pension liabifity/(asset)...... $164,591,504 $ 97,015,707 $261,607,211
Plan fiduciarynet position................... 161,213,259 108,155,083 269,368,342
Employers' net pension liability/(asset)....... $ 3,378,245 $(11,139,376) $ (7.761,131)
System fiduciary net pension as a
percentage of {otal pension liability(assef). .. 97.95% 111.48% 102.97%
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Payables to the Pension Plan—For ERS, employer contributions are paid annually based on the
System’s fiscal year which ends on March 31, payable in full by February 1. The County opted to
prepay the required contribution on December 15™ at an offered discount of 0.91%. Accrued
retirement contributions as of December 31, 2015 are attributable entirely to the College (August 31,
2015) and represents the projected employer contribution for College’s fiscal year of April 1, 2015 to
August 31, 2015 based on paid ERS wages multiplied by the employer’s contribution rate, by tier.
Accrued retirement contributions for ERS at the end of the College’s fiscal year amounted to
$1,910,053.

For TRS, employer and employee contributions for the College fiscal year ended August 31,2015 are
paid to TRS in September, October and November 2015 through a state aid intercept. Accrued
retirement contributions as of August 31, 20135 represent employee and employer contributiens for
the fiscal year ended August 31, 2015 based on paid TRS wages multiplied by the employer’s
contribution rate, by tier, and employee contributions for the fiscal year as reported to the TRS
System. Accrued retirement contributions for TRS as of August 31, 2015 amounted to $2,834,278.

B. Defined Contribution Plan

Teachers’ Insurance and Annuity Association - College Retirement Equities Fund

Plan Description — TIAA-CREF is an optional retirement program (“ORP”) authorized by the
trustees of the State Unjversity of New York. The TIAA/CREF issues a publicly available financial
report that contains financial statements and required supplementary information. The report may be
obtained by writing to the Teachers’ Insurance and Annuity Association - College Retirement
Equities Fund, 730 Third Avenue, New York New York, 10017.

Funding Policy — TIAA-CREF provides benefits through annuity contracts and provides retirement
and death benefits to those employees who elected to participate in the ORP. Benefits are determined
by the amount of individual accumulations and the retirement income option selected. All benefits
generally vest after the completion of one year of service if the employee is retained thereafter. TIAA-
CREF is contributory for employees who joined after July 27, 1976, who contribute 3% of their
salary. For employees enrolled after June 30, 1992, the College contributes 8% of salary for the first
seven years of employment and 10% of salary thereafter. For employees enrolled between July 27,
1976 and June 30, 1992, the College contributes 9% of'the first $16,500 in salary and 12% thereafter.
Those joining after April 1, 2013 contribute a percentage ranging from 3% to 6%, based on salary for
their entire length of service. Employee contributions are deducted from their salaries and remitted on
a current basis to TIAA-CREF.

Contributions made by the College and its employees in the 2015 fiscal year were $2,233,566 and
$85,681, respectively. The total unpaid balance of this retirement liability at August 31, 2015 was
$85,866.
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N X - CONSTRUCTION AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

Construction Commitments ~ The County has a number of active construction projects at December 31,
2015. The amounts spent to date and remaining commitments (encumbrances) presented by major project
B groupings are as foliows (dollars in thousands):

=y Remaining
s Projects Spent-to-date ~ Commitments
General government buildings, equipment and improvements ... ... ... 5 32,449 $ 11,548
N Highways, roads, bridges andequipment .. ........................ 24,602 12,674
Sewers, facilities equipment and improvements . ................... 26,772 15,710
Special capitalprojects ... ... . 6,216 3,901
Total . . e e $ 90,039 $ 43,833

B Operating Leases — Operating lease obligations are primarily for rental of space. Lease expenditures/expenses
'; for the year were $4,956,341 for the primary govemment and approximately $3,357,000 for the ECMCC
component unit. The future minimuin rental payments required for non-cancelable operating leases are
. (dollars in thousands):

" Fiscal Primary ECMCC

-
Year Government Component Unit
Li 2016...... $ 3,676 $ 1,358
2017 ...... 1,605 1,163
2018.... .. 1,074 747
L 2019...... 318 558
2020...... 282 315

7 2021-2025 . - 823
Totals . .. .. $ 6956 § 4,964

XI - RISK MANAGEMENT

A. Insurance

The County assumes the liability for most risk including, but not Hmited to, property damage,

personal injury liability, medical malpractice, and workers’ compensation. Asserted and incurred but

not reported judgments and claims are recorded when it is probabie that an asset has been impaired or
= a liability has been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. Such recording is
consistent with the requirements of GAAP. Governmental fund type estimated current contingent loss
: liabilities for property damage, personal injury liability, medical malpractice, and workers’
- compensation are reported within governmental activities in the government-wide financial
L statements.

Loss contingency liabilities arising from operations of the College are recorded in accordance with
L GASB by the County and are reported in full within governmental activities in the government-wide
w financial statements and in the General Fund when payment is due. They are only recognized as a
College liability when invoiced from the County.
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B.

Self-Insurance Programs

The County is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; business interruption; errors or omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The
County assumes the Hability for risks relating to property damage, personal injury liability, medical
malpractice and workers’ compensation. The County has also elected to purchase some minor
policies from commercial insurers to provide for items such as comprehensive crime and
boiler/machinery coverage, as well as protection of valuable papers and records; settled claims have
not exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Judgments and claims are recognized as liabilities in the government-wide financial statements when
it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability has been incurred and the amount of the
loss can be reasonably estimated. These liabilities include an estimate of claims that have been
incurred but not reported, and the effects of both specific, incremental claims adjustment
expenditures/expenses and estimated recoveries on unsettled claims, if any. Judgments and claims
reportable as part of the County’s governmental type fund activities are recognized as expenditures
and liabilities in the General Fund when payment is due.

The County Attorney is responsible for analyzing the County’s judgments and claims and providing
an opinion regarding the County’s ability to cover its liabilities in the self-insurance programs. Based
on this analysis, judgments and claims of $55,345,669 were recorded as governmental activities long-
term liabilities at December 31, 2015.

In addition, the County has claims in the range of $2,745,500 to $15,352,500 for which there is a
reasonable possibility of a future loss. No accrual has been recorded for such possible losses as of
December 31, 2015.

The amounts and classifications of the judgments and claims noted above are based upon information
and opinions from the County Attomey.
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The changes since December 31, 2013 in the reported governmental fund liability for risk financing
activities were as follows (doilars in thousands):

Current-Year

Claims and
Beginning of Changes in Claim Balance at
Year Year Liability Estimates Payments Year End
2015..... g 1,118 $ 2,558 $ 3415 & 261
2014 .. ... 1,107 1,767 1,756 1,118

Erie Connty Medical Center Corporation

Losses from asserted and unasserted claims identified under ECMCC’s incident reporting system are accrued
based on actuarial estimates that incorporate ECMCC’s past experience, the nature of each claim or incident,
relevant trend factors, and estimated recoveries on unsettled claims. Approximately $22,675,000 has been
accrued at December 31, 2015, discounted at 2.00% and included as liabilities in the accompanying statement
of net position. The County assumed ECMCC’s malpractice liability for periods prior to 2004 and, under
terms of a consent decree, has agreed to provide ECMCC indemnification for malpractice related exposures of
up to $1,000,000 for each of 2006 and 2007. Approximately $747,000 and $387,000 of indemnification
remains available for 2006 and 2007, respectively. No accrual has been recorded by the County for such
possible losses. In addition, ECMCC has recorded liabilities of approximately $31,204,000 for workers’
compensation related exposure, discounted at 1.25%. Effective January 1, 2012, ECMCC has a high
deductible workers’ compensation insurance policy.

XII - SHORT-TERM DEBT

Short-term debt of the County may include revenue, tax, and/or bond anticipation notes. These notes are
reported as a fund liability in the fund receiving the proceeds in accordance with the criteria set forth in
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”™) Accounting Standards Codification 470.10, Debt, because
legal steps have not been taken to refinance the notes on a long-term basis.

The following is a summary of changes in the County’s short-term debt for the year ended December 31,
2015 (dollars in thousands):

Balance Balance
Description 1/1/15 Issued Redeemed 12/31/15
Bend anticipation notes (BANMECFSA. . ... $ 109,190 § - § 109,180 % -
Revenue anticipation notes (RAN) . ........ - 89,560 - 88,560

On December 14, 2015 Erie County issued a RAN totaling $89,560,000 with an interest rate of 1.50%. The
RAN matures on June 30, 2016.
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XIIT - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

A. Bonded Indebtedness

Bonded indebtedness is reported in the government-wide financial statements. The following is a
summary of bond transactions of the County for the year ended December 31, 2015 (dollars in

thousands):
Interest Balance Balance Due Within
Purpose (1) Issue Maturity Rate (%) 11115 Additions Reductions 12131115 One Year

Governmentat activities general obligation bonds issued by County of Erie:

Capital 1996 2015 0.00 $ 78 $ - $ 78 $ - $ -
Capital 1999 2018 0.00 25 - 6 19 6
Capital 2001 2031 0.00 3,012 - 160 2,852 162
Capital 2002 2031 1.362-5.082 860 - 45 815 45
Capital 2002 2024 2.521-6.181 2,710 - 230 2,480 235
Capital 2003 2032 1.031-4.901 910 - 40 870 40
Capital 2003 2029 2.549-6.259 9,465 - 670 8,795 690
Capital 2003 2032 0.00 297 - 16 281 16
Capital 2003 2032 0.790-4.6812 850 - 40 810 40
Capital 2004 2033 1.02-4.63 785 - 35 750 35
Capital 2005 2034 1.56-4.57 2,515 - 302 2,213 9
Capital 2005 2033 2.06-4.13 1,870 - 80 1,790 80
Capitat 2005 2020 4.45-5.00 4,720 - 4,720 - -
Capital 2005 2035 3.50-5.00 9,995 - 280 9,705 305
Refunding 2005 2029 3.50-4.50 30,625 - 30,625 - -
Capital 2006 2035 0.00 1,455 - 70 1,385 70
Capital 2006 2017 3.50-4.00 4,505 - 1,445 3,060 1,500
Capital 2006 2036 3.50-4.25 3,640 - 105 3,535 110
Capital 2007 2036 3.634.79 4,120 - 150 3,970 150
Capital 2010 2023 2.00-4.99 121,340 - 11,175 110,165 11,640
Capital 2010 2039 0.290-4.60 5,070 - 135 4,935 140
Refunding 2010 2020 3.865-21.455 36,600 - 5425 31,175 5875
Refunding 2010 2022 2.001-5.00 25,605 - 6,925 18,680 7,160
Refunding 2010 2018 0.95-3.13 60 - 15 45 15
Refunding 2011 2018 1.04-3.30 305 - a5 210 95
Capital 2011 2040 0.00 464 - 18 446 18
Capital & Refunding 201 2041 0.28-4.95 13,245 - 415 12,830 420
Refunding 2011 2018 2.00-5.00 27,280 - 6,340 20,940 6,650
Capital 2011 2023 3.00-5.00 13,485 - 1,250 12,245 1,285
Capital 2012 2026 2.00-5.00 19,695 - 1,290 18,405 1,320
Capital 2012 2042 0.27-4.27 2,980 - 75 2,905 75
Capital 2013 2024 2.726-5.00 25,635 - 2,165 23,470 2,230
Refunding 2013 2024 2.00-5.00 30,350 - 2,410 27,940 4,935
Capital 2013 2023 2.00-5.00 32,850 - 2,990 29,860 3,140
Capital 2014 2026 2.00-5.00 24,995 - 1,795 23,200 1,680 _
Capital 2014 2028 2.00-5.00 2,410 - 145 2,265 135
Capital 2015 2028 5.00 - 29,815 - 29,815 1,790
Refunding 2015 2029 5.00 - 24,615 - 24,615 2,405
Capital 2015 2028 3.00-5.00 - 2,185 - 2,185 140
Totalscaredforward . ... 464 816 56,615 81,770 439,661 54,543
(Confinued)
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Interest Balance Balance Due Within
Purpose {1) Issue Maturity Rate (%) 1/1/15 Additions Reductions 12/31/15 One Year
Totalsbroughtforward . ... ... ... ... ... $ 464,816 $ 56,615 $ 81,770 $ 439,661 $ 54,543
Less bonds issued by the County to ECFSA (mirror bonds):
Capital 2010 2023 2.00-4.99 (121,340) - (11,175) (110,165} (11,640,
Refunding 2010 2020 3.865-21.455 {36,600) - (5,425) {(31,175) (5,675
Refunding 2010 2022 2.001-5.00 (25,605) - (6,925) (18,680) {7,160
Refunding 2011 2018 2.00-5.00 (27,280) - {6,340) (20,940) {6,650
Capital 2011 2023 3.00-5.00 (13,495) - {1,250) (12,245) (1,295}
Capital 2013 2024 2.726-5.00 (25,635) - (2,165) (23,470) {2,230
Refunding 2013 2024 2.00-5.00 (30,350) - (2,410) (27,940) {4,935)
Capital 2013 2023 2.00-5.00 {32,850) - (2,990) (29,860) (3,140
Totalmirrorbonds . . ....... .. o i (313,155) - (38,680) (274,475} (42,725;
Net general obligation bonds
issued by Countyof Erfe . .. ... ..o . 151,661 56,615 43,090 165,186 11,818
Governmental activities generai obligation bonds issued by ECFSA:
Capital 2010 2023 2.0-5.0 121,340 - 11,175 110,165 11,640
Refunding 2010 2020 2.0-5.0 36,600 - 5,425 31,175 5,675
Refunding 2010 2022 2.25-5.24 25,605 - 6,925 18,680 7,160
Refunding 2011 2018 2.00-5.00 27,280 - 6,340 20,940 6,650
Capital 2011 2023 3.00-5.00 13,495 - 1,250 12,245 1,295
ECMCC facility 2011 2028 4.00-5.00 78,615 - 4,050 74,565 4,210
Capital 2013 2024 2.726-5.00 25,635 - 2,165 23,470 4,935
Refunding 2013 2024 2.00-5.00 30,350 - 2,410 27,940 2,230
Capital 2013 2023 2.00-5.00 32,850 - 2,990 29,860 3,140
Total general obligation bonds issued by ECFSA . ....... ..., 391,770 - 42,730 349,040 46,935
Total general obligation bonds
issued by County of Efleand ECFSA . . ... ... ... ... .. ... 543,431 56,615 85,820 514,226 58,753
Premiumon bondissuance .. .. ..ot 7,752 8,822 1,809 14,765 -
Premium on bond issuance-ECFSA . .. ...................... 29,931 - 6,968 22,963 -
Total County of Erie and ECFSA bonds payable-net. ... ......... 581,114 65,437 94,597 551,954 58,753
Governmental activities bonds issued by ETASC(2):
Tobacco refunding 2005 varies varies 258,340 - 2,220 256,120 -
Subordinate CABs 2005 varies varies 32,870 - - 32,870 -
Subordinate CABs 2006 varies varies 17,695 - - 17,695 -
Subordinate CABs 2005-06 varies varies 42,102 6,415 - 48,517 -
Subtotal bonds issued by ETASC . ...................... 351,007 6,415 2,220 355,202 -
Discounton ETASC bonds . .. ... ... i i i, (9,568) - (74) (9,494) -
Discount on ETASC subordinate CABs. . ..................... (1,501) - (11) (1,490) -
Total ETASC honds payable-net. .. ...................... 339,938 6,415 2,135 344,218 -
Governmental activities bonds payable
for financial statementpurposes ... ... ... .. . i $ 921,052 $ 71,852 $ 96,732 $ 896,172 $ 58,753
(Concluded)

(1) Capital-Capital acquisition and construction.

(2)  Refer to discussion within Note XIII(B) regarding outstanding ETASC bonds payable, including Capital Appreciation

Bonds (“CABs”).
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B.

Erie Tobacco Asset Securitization Corporation (a Blended Component Unit)

In 2000, ETASC issued $246,325,000 of Tobacco Settlement Asset-Backed Bonds, Series 2000
pursuant to an indenture dated as of September 1, 2000 (the “Indenture”). The $246,325,000 bond
issuance was comprised of $196,985,000 Tobacco Settlement Asset-Backed Bonds Series 2000A and
$49,340,000 Tobacco Settlement Asset-Backed Bonds Series 2000B. The net proceeds of the Series
2000 Bonds were used to purchase from the County all of the County’s right, title and interest to
Tobacco Settlement Revenues (“TSRs™) to which the County would otherwise be entitled under the
Master Settlement Agreement (“MSA”) and Consent Decree and Final Judgment (the *“Decree™).

On August 15, 2005, ETASC issued $318,834,680 in Tobacco Settlement Asset-Backed Bonds
(series 2005A, E) and Capital Appreciation Bonds (“CABs”) (Series 20058, C, D) with interest rates
ranging from 5.0% to 6.75% to advance refund $239,060,000 of outstanding Series 2000 Tobacco
Settlement Asset-Backed bonds bearing interest rates ranging from 5.0% to 6.5% originally issued in
2000. The net proceeds amounted to $305,330,026 after original issuance discount and payment of
$13,504,654 for underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs, of which $267,037,311 was
used to fund an irrevocable trust to defease the remaining original bonds. This transaction enabled the
ETASC to release $55,231,709 in previously restricted funds for debt service and trapping events to
the County.

In connection with this bond issuance, ETASC entered into a forward purchase agreement and an
effective swap of variable market rate returns with a fixed rate return that will expire by its terms on
the final maturity of the asset-backed bonds on June 1, 2055. ETASC entered into this forward
purchase agreement to facilitate investment of the monies in the Debt Service Reserve Fund while the
2005 ETASC bonds are outstanding.

ETASC has evaluated the forward purchase agreement using the consistent critical terms method and
deemed it to be effective. As of December 31, 2015, the notional amount of the agreement totals
$19,218,750, the fair value is $8,252,891, and net cash flows during the year totaled $749,063.

On September 15, 2005, ETASC entered into an agreement with the bondholders to replace the
government securities in the irrevocable trust with government agency securities. This transaction
generated a savings of $2,802,806. Of this, $1,331,893 was transferred to the County and the
remainder less costs of sale was paid to the bondholders for their concessions. During 2010, the
bonds were called and the balance in the irrevocable trust was used to satisfy all required debt

payments.

On January 5, 2006, ETASC issued $17,694,720 of Tobacco Settlement Asset-Backed CABs, Series
2006A with an interest rate of 7.65%. ETASC entered into a purchase and sale agreement with the
County on January 1, 2006, in which ETASC purchased the County’s sole undivided beneficial
interest in and to the trust established by ETASC pursuant to the Declaration and Agreement of Trust
dated September 1, 2000 between ETASC and the Wilmington Trust Company (“2000 Residential
Trust™), in its capacity as trustee, including the County’s right to receive residual tobacco settlement
revenues payable to the County, as sole beneficiary of the 2000 Residential Trust. The net proceeds
of $15,638,465 were transferred to the County’s General Fund.

The payment of the Series 2005 and Series 2006 Bonds is dependent on the receipt of TSRs. The
amount of TSRs actually collected is dependent on many factors including cigarette consumption and
the continued operations of the participating cigarette manufacturers in the MSA. Such bonds are
secured by and payable solely from TSRs and investment earnings pledged under the Indenture and
amounts established and held in accordance with the Indenture, and are not legal obligations of the
County. ETASC has no financial assets other than the collections and reserves and amounts held in
the other funds and accounts established under the Indenture.
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ETASC has covenanted to apply 100% of all surplus revenues (defined as revenues which are in
excess of Indenture requirements for the funding of operating expenses and deposits in the Debt
Service account maintained for the funding of interest, principal and other items) to the special
mandatory par redemption (*“Turbo Redemptions™) of Series 2005 Bonds in order of their maturity
and then to the Series 2006A Bonds to the extent that there exists excess funds. Any such surplus
revenues shall be applied on each distribution date beginning on June 1, 2006.

Interest on the Series 2005A and E Bonds are payable each June 1 and December 1. The 2005 Series
B, Cand D and the Series 2006A are subordinate CABs and accrue interest throughout the life of the
bonds but is not payable until bond maturity. Future interest accretion has been recorded as bond
discount and amortized as the current interest accretes, The accreted interest on the Subordinate
CABs is reflected within the Subordinate CABs payable liability. Series 20058, C, and D CABs are
subject to redemption at the option of ETASC beginning in years after 2016. The Series 2006A
CABs may be redeemed after May 31, 2017.
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Details of ETASC’s long-term debt as of December 31, 2015 are as follows:

Issue
Amount

Rate

$318,834,680
Term Bond

Description

Projected Final Turbo
Redemption Date

$ 30,330,000

74,685,000

111,480,000

9,163,000

12,565,080

11,141,600

69,470,000

5.000%

5.000%

5.000%

5.750%

6.250%

6.750%

6.000%

Series 2005A Bonds Due June 1, 2031

Semi-annual interest only payments through maturity, may be
redeemed at the option of the ETASC at anytime in whole or in
part after June 1, 2015

Series 2005A Bonds Due June 1, 2038

Semi-annual interest only payments through maturity, may be
redeemed at the option of the ETASC at anytime in whole orin
part after June 1, 2015

Series 2005A Bonds Due June 1, 2045

Semi-annual interest only payments through maturity, may be
redeemed at the option of the ETASC at anytime in whole or in
part after June 1, 2015

Series 20058 Bonds Due June 1, 2047

Semi-annual interest accrued but not payable uniil maturity,
subject to redemption at the option of ETASC anytime after June
1, 2015 at accreted values as follows: June 1, 2015 through May
31, 2018, 102%; June 1, 20186 through May 31, 2017, 101%;
June 1, 2017 and thereafter, 100%

Series 2005C Bonds Due June 1, 2050

Semi-annual interest accrued but not payable until maturity,
subject to redemption at the option of ETASC anytime after June
1, 2015 at accreted values as follows: June 1, 2015 through May
31, 2016, 102%; June 1, 2016 through May 31, 2017, 101%,;
June 1, 2017 and thereafter, 100%

Series 2005D Bonds Due June 1, 2055

Semi-annual interest accrued but not payable untit maturity,
subject to redemption at the option of ETASC anytime after June
1, 2015 at accreted values as follows: June 1, 2015 through May
31, 2016, 102%; June 1, 2016 through May 31, 2017, 101%;
June 1, 2017 and thereafter, 100%

Series 2005E Taxable Bonds Due June 1, 2028

Semi-annual interest only payments through maturity, may be
redeemed at the option of the ETASC at anytime in whole or in
part after June 1, 2015

June 1, 2031

June 1, 2038

June 1, 2045

June 1, 2047

June 1, 2050

June 1, 2055

June 1, 2028

(Continued)
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517,604,720
Term Bond
Issue Projected Final Turbo
Amount Rate Description Redemption Date
$ 17,694,720 7.650% Series 2006A Taxable Bonds Due June 1, 2060 June 1, 2060

Semi-annual interest accrued but not payable untit maturity,
subordinate to the Series 2005 A-E Bonds, subject to redemption
at the option of the ETASC anytime after June 1, 2016 at accreted
values as follows: June 1, 2016 through May 31, 2017, 102%;
June 1, 2017 through May 31, 2018, 101%, and June 1, 2018 and
thereafter, 100%

(Concluded}

Changes in ETASC bonded indebtedness for the year ended December 31, 2015 were as follows
(dollars in thousands):

Tobacco
Settlement Subordinate
Bonds CABs Total
Bonds payabile atJanuary 1,2015........ 5 258,340 $ 92,667 $ 351,007
Principal payments during 2015.......... (2.220) - (2,220)
Additions and annual net interest accretion - 6415 6,415
Bonds payable at December 31, 2015..... 3 256,120 $ 90,082 $ 355,202

The amount reflected in the statement of net position for ETASC’s bonds payable is net of
unamortized discounts on the sale of bonds totaling $10,983,138.

The ETASC’s debt service requirements for the Series 2005A and 2005E bonds as of December 31,
2015 are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Total

Year ending December 31, Principal interest Debt Service

2016 . e $ - % 13202 5 13,202
2017 e - 13,202 13,202
2018 . - 13,202 13,202
2018 - 13,202 13,202
2020 . ... - 13,202 13,202
2021-2025. .. ... - 66,011 66,011
2026-2030 ... ... 39,625 60,068 89,693
2031-2035. ... 30,330 47,300 77,630
2036-2040 ... .. 74,685 37,206 111,891
2041-2045 .. .. 111,480 25,083 136,563

$ 256,120 % 301,678 % 557,798
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C.

Erie County Medical Center Corporation

Long-term Debt — The following is a summary of long-term bonded debt at December 31, 2015:

Erie County—Guaranteed Senior Revenue Bonds,
Series 2004 (interestof4.1% 0 5.7%) .. oot $ 84,790,000

The Series 2004 bonds are secured by a pledge of the gross receipts of ECMCC and amounts on
deposit in certain debt service reserve funds. To the extent that the debt service reserve funds fall
below their requirements, the County has agreed to restore such accounts to their requirement.

Pursuant to a Guaranty Agreement, the County has unconditionally guaranteed to ECMCC the
punctual payment of the principal, interest and redemption premium, if any, on the Series 2004
Bonds, as the same shall become due and payable, and has pledged the faith and credit of the County
for the performance of such guaranty. A municipal bond insurance policy has been purchased by
ECMCC to guarantee ail debt service payments in case of default by ECMCC and the County.

The Series 2004 Bonds require ECMCC to make monthly payments to certain debt service accounts
for the semiannual payment of interest and the annual payment of principal (principal payments

commenced November 1, 2009).

Other Long-Term Liabilities

In addition to bonded indebtedness, the County incurs a variety of other long-term liabilities.
Descriptions of these liabilities follow:

1. Due to Retirement Systems

Retirement payables of the primary government at December 31, 2015 for amounts due in
2016 and future years are reported in the government-wide financial statements as follows
(dollars in thousands):

Business-type

Activities”
Retirement liability outstanding
atyear-end................. % 4,830
Less: Due withinoneyear. ... .. .. 4,499
Due in more than cne year . . . . $ 331

* The College {(August 31, 2015)

The College has recorded the above retirement liabilities as long-term liabilities on the
statement of net position.

2. Compensated Absences

The value recorded in the government-wide financial statements for compensated absences at
December 31, 2015, for governmental activities is $22,997,060 classified as a long-term
liability in the accompanying financial statements, which includes $13,403,288 due within
one year. The following governmental funds have been used in prior years to liquidate this
liability: General Fund, the Road, Sewer, E-911, Grants and Community Development
Special Revenue Funds.

Comm. 19E-17
Page 73 of 112



COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK « 69

Compensated absences of $4,093,344 have been reported for business-type activities,
classified as fringe benefits payable, on the fund financial statements, which includes
$400,000 due within one year.

Compensated absences of the Library component unit totaling $1,566,373 have been
reported as a long-term liability, which includes $839,455 due within one year.
Compensated absences of the ECMCC component unit totaling approximately $11,545,000
have been reported as an accrued liability.

Judgments and Claims

As further explained in Note XI, the County is self-insured. Liabilities are established for
workers’ compensation, general and malpractice claims in accordance with GAAP.
Estimated long-term contingent loss liabilities of governmental fund types total $55,345,669
and have been reported as Jong-term liabilities in the govermment-wide financial statements.

Also, as further explained in Notes XI and XIII (E) (4), ECMCC is self-insured and has
recorded approximately $21,433,000 and $28,033,000 for the long-term portions of medical
malpractice and workers’ compensation liability related exposures, respectively.

Other Post-employment Benefits (“OPEB”) — Health Insurance

The County recognizes the cost of post-employment healthcare in the year when the
employee services are received, reports the accumulated liability from prior years, and
provides information useful in assessing potential demands on the County’s future cash
flows. Recognition of the liability accumulated from prior years will be phased in over 30
years, and commenced with the 2007 liability.

Plan Description ~ The County provides continuation of medical insurance coverage to
employees if they have been continuously employed by the County for the equivalent of at
least five years at the time of retirement. The obligation of the County to contribute to the
cost of these benefits has been established pursuant to legislative resolution and various
collective bargaining agreements. The retiree and his or her beneficiaries receive this
coverage for the life of the retiree. Healthcare benefits for non-union employees are similar
to those of union employees. The retiree’s share of premium costs in most instances range
from 0% to 50% depending on the employee group, length of service and year of retirement.

Funding Policy — The County currently pays for Governmental Activities post-employment
health care benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis, primarily from the General Fund (86%). The
remainder is allocated to the Road, Sewer, E-911, Grants and Community Development
Special Revenue Funds. These financial statements assume that pay-as-you-go funding will
continue.

Annunal Other Post-employment Benefit Cost — For the fiscal year ended December 31,
2015, the County’s annual OPEB cost (expense) of $72,307,280 is equal to the Annual
Required Contribution (“ARC”) of $78,976,311, minus certain adjustments which totaled
$6,669,031. Those adjustments were: interest on the net OPEB obligation and adjustment to
the ARC. Considering the annual expense as well as payments for current health insurance
premiums, which totaied $37,970,512 for retirees and their beneficiaries, the result was an
increase in the net OPEB obligation of $34,336,768 for the year ended December 31, 2015.
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Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB QObligation (dollars in thousands)

Primary
Governmental Business-type Government
Activities Activities * Total
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) . ... .. ... oo et $ 777,048 $ 129,373 $ 806,421
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAALY . ... ......... 777,048 129,373 806,421
Normal cost forthefiscalyear. . ... ... ... ... ... ... ... 26,233 5,088 31,321
Amortization factor basedon 30years . ................ 17.40 17.40 17.40
Annualcoveredpayroll . ... ... .. .. 202,798 59,557 262,355
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll . .............. 383.16% 217.23% 345.49%
Level Dollar Amortization
Calculation of ARC under Projected Unit Credit Method
ARC normal cost with interesttoend ofyear. . .......... $ 26,233 $ 5,088 3 31,321
UAAL over 30 years with interest atendof year. . ... .. ... 40,935 6,720 47 655
Annual required contribution (ARC)} .. ......... ... ... 67,168 11,808 78,976
Intereston net COPEB obligation ... ................... 14,302 2,612 16,814
Adjustmentto ARC . .. ... ... {19,941) (3,642} (23,583)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) ... ... ... . ... ... ... 61,529 10,778 72,307
Contribution for fiscal year ended December 31, 2015 . . . .. {31,959) (6,011) (37,970)
Increase in net OPEB obligation . ..................... 28,570 4,767 34,337
Net OPEB obligation December 31,2014 ... . ........... 332,592 60,747 393,339
Net OPEB obligation December 31,2015 ............... $ 362,162 $ 65,514 $ 427 676
Percent of annual OPEB cost contributed:;
2015, ... ... ... 51.94% 55.77% 52.51%
2014, ... L. 57.00% 73.00% 60.00%
2013 ... Ll 38.45% 42.46% 39.04%
* The College (August 31, 2015)
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Funded Status and Funding Progress — The OPEB plan was unfunded, resulting in an
unfunded accrued liability (UAAL) of $777,048,007 for governmental activities and
$129,373,029 for business-type activities. The County’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage
of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for the fiscal
years ended December 31, 2015 and the two preceding years were as follows:

Fiscal Percentage of Net

Year Annual Annual OPEB OPEB

Ended OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Cbligation
12/31/2015. .. .. 5 72,307 5251% & 427,676
12/31/2014 .. .. .. 52,156 60.00% 393,339
12/31/2013 . ... .. 71,637 39.04% 372,245

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts
and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of
the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding
progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the
financial statements, presents multiyear trend information that shows whether the actuarial
value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liabilities for benefits.

Actnarial Methods and Assumptions — Projections of benefits for financial reporting
purposes are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan
(the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and on the historical pattern
of cost sharing between the employer and plan members at that point. The actuarial methods
and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the
long-term perspective of the calculations. Inciuded coverages are “experience-rated” and
annual premiums for experience-rated coverages were used as a proxy for claims costs with
age adjustments for pre-65 and post-65 participants. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability
is being amortized over 30 years on a level dollar open basis.

In the January 1, 2014 actuarial valuation, the liabilities were computed using the projected
unit credit method. The actuarial assumptions utilized an inflation rate of 2.25% and a
4.30% investment rate of return. The latter rate is based on the projected long-term earing
rate of the assets expected to be available to pay benefits. Because the County does not
currently segregate funding for these benefits, the rate selected is the expected return on the
County’s assets. The valuation assumes healthcare cost trends as follows: pre-65 medical,
7.75%; post-65 medical, 5.25% and prescription, 6.25%. Healthcare trends are reduced by
decrements to reach a rate of 5.00% in 2022.

Medical Reimbursements — The County’s Medicare Part D prescription drug subsidy, which
reduces the cost of retiree healthcare premiums, is accrued as revenue only in the current
year. Projected subsidies for future years cannot be recognized as a reduction to the actuarial
accrued liability.
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E. Summary of Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2015

(dollars in thousands):

1. Governmental Activities

Balance
1115
(as restated)  Additions Reductions

Balance Due Within
1213115 One Year

Bonds payable for financial

statement purposes ........... $ 921,052 $ 71,852 $ 96,732
Compensated absences .......... 22,563 19,479 19,045
Judgments and claims ........... 54,131 14,513 13,298
OPEB liability . ................... 332,592 61,529 31,959
Netpension liability* ............. 40,829 - 10,306
Accrued derivative liability - ETASC . 8,236 17 -

$ 896172 § 58,753

22,997 13,403
55,346 11,896
362,162 -
30,523 -
8,253 -

Governmental activities
long-term liabilities ........... $1,379,403 $ 167,390 $ 171,340

$1,3754563 § 84,0562

* Reductions to the net pension liability are shown net of additions.

The General Fund or applicable special revenue funds are the governmental funds that generally have
been used in prior years to liquidate compensated absences, judgments and claims, other post-

employment benefit and net pension liabilities.

2. Business-Type Activities™
Balance
9/1/14 Baiance Due Within
{as restated) Additions Reductions 8/31/15 One Year
Retirement liabilities . . ... .. .. $ 4808 § 8,691 $ 8666 $ 4833 M§ 4499
Compensated absences
and fringe benefits . . . . . .. 5,254 282 392 5,144 400
Capital leases .. ............ 4,430 - 1,476 2,954 1,477
OPEB liability . . .. ... ....... 60,747 10,778 6,011 65,514 -
Net pension liability . ... ...... 3,966 - 1,001 2,965 -
Business-type activities
long-term liabilities . . . . .. $ 79,205 $ 19,751 $ 17,546 $ 81,410 3 6,376

* The College (August 31, 2015)

{1} Includes $3 of Retirement Incentive Wages, of which $0 is due within one year.
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Balance Due Within

Reductions 12/31/15 One Year

5 976  § 1,966 3 839
1,415 23,926 -
538 1,591 -

3 2929 § 27,083 % 839

3. Library Component Unit
Balance
111115
(as restated) Additions
Compensated absences .. ..... 3 1661 § 881
OPEB liahilify . . .....oovv vttt 21,644 3,697
Net pension liability . .......... 2,129 -
Library Component Unit
fong-term liabilities .. ... .. $ 25434 § 4,578
4, ECMCC Component Unit
Balance
1/1/15

Balance Due Within

(as restated) Additions Reductions 12/31/15 One Year
Bonds payable for financial

statement purposes . ..... $ 87500 % - % 2710 § 84790 3 2,860
Long-term toan (1).......... 85,629 - 4,817 80,812 5,001
Capital Lease .............. 1,587 9,923 610 10,900 2,758
Judgments and claims (2).... 45,525 10,207 6,266 49,466 -
OPEB liability. . ............ 119,859 21,779 18,4186 123,222 -
Netpension liability......... 32,253 - 8,141 24,112 -
Other...........covient - 3,289 - 3,289 -

ECMCC Componeni Unit
long-term liabilities . .... $372353 § 45198 § 40960 § 376,591 $ 10,619

{1} Refer to discussion within Note XV(B) regarding long-term loan due to primary govermnment.
{2) Refer to discussions within Notes XI(B} and Xlli{D}{3) and regarding judgments and claims of ECMCC.

Additional judgments and claims liabilities for workers’ compensation and medical malpractice,
along with other post-employment benefits have been recorded by ECMCC as accrued liabilities in
the amounts of $3,171,000, $1,242,000 and $9,109,000 respectively.
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F. Maturity Schedules {(dollars in thousands)

1. Remaining Annual Maturities of Long-Term Liabilities (by Debt Type) — Primary

Government
Compensated Accrued
Absences Net Derivative
and Fringe Judgments Capital Pension  Liability -
Year Total Bonds Retirement Benefits and Claims Leases OPEB Liability ETASC
2016...... 3 90,428 $ 58,753 $ 4,499 $ 13,803 $ 11,896 § 1,477 $ - % - % -
2017 ... ... 62,401 60,590 334 - - 1.477 - - -
2018...... 55,932 55,932 - - - - - - -
2099...... 50,704 50,704 - - - - - - -
2020........ 52,045 52,045 - - - - - - -
20212025 . . 166,693 166,693 - - - - - - -
2026-2030. . 91,546 91,548 - - - - - - -
2031-2035 . . 42,093 42,093 - - - - - - -
2036-2040 . . 79,634 79,634 - - - - - - -
20412045 . . 112,355 112,355 - - - - - - -
2046-2050 . . 21,728 21,728 - - - - - - -
2051-2055 . . 11,142 11,142 - - - - - - -
2056-2060 . . 17,695 17,695 - - - - - - -
Various (1). . 575,723 48 518 - 14,339 43,450 - 427,675 33,488 8,253
1,430,119 869,428 $ 4,833 3 28,142 3 55,346 $ 2,954 § 427875 § 33488 § 8,253
{10,984) {10,984) Remaining unamortized discount on bond issuance - ETASC
14,765 14,765 Remaining unamortized premium of bond issuance
22,963 22,963 Remaining unamortized premium of bond issuance - ECFSA
§ 1,456,883 § 896,172 Leong-term liabilities for financial statement puposes
(1) Payment of Suberdinate CABs, compensated absences, judgments and claims, OPEB, and net pension liabilities are
dependent upon many factors; therefore, timing of future payments is not readily determinable.
Annual Interest Payments Due on Serial Bonds
Primary ECMCC
Year Government Component Unit
2016........ 5 36,703 5 4,769
2017 ........ 34,073 4,611
2018 ........ 31,239 4,445
2019........ 28,748 4270
2020.,........ 26,330 4,085
2021-2025 ... 101,905 17,278
2026-2030... 69,103 10,710
2031-2035. .. 50,042 2,382
2036-2040 ... 37,940 -
2041-2045 ... 25,110 -
Totals . .. $ 441,193 $ 52,550
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3. Principal and Interest Payments Due on County Mirror Bonds to ECFSA

: Year Principal Interest
2016........ $ 42725 3 12,235
o 2017 ........ 44 035 10,330
. 2018........ 40,455 8,237
L 2019........ 34,660 6,460
) 2020......... 36,080 4,796
2021-2024 . ., 76,520 6,571
' Totals ... % 274,475 $ 48,629

4, Capital Leases

The College has entered into lease agreements as a lessee for financing the acquisition of various
capital assets (computer equipment, networking technology). The effective interest rate of the lease is
3.36% and lease principal payments are recorded as a reduction in capital lease liability. The
College’s future minimum lease payments under capital leases as of August 31,2015, are as follows:

Business-type
J Year Ending August 31, Activities
’ 2016 . . e $ 1,559
2017 e 1,510
Total minimum lease payments . ........... 3,069
Less: amount representing interest . . .. ... .. (115)
Present value of minimum lease payments . . . 5 2,954
- The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:
; Assets:
e Network technology . ............... $ 7,384
Less: accumulated depreciation . . . . .. (4,430)
- - WA
Totalassets,net. . ............... $ 2,054
3. Remaining Annual Maturities of Long-Tenm Liabilities - Library Component Unit
: Compensated Net Pensicn
. Year Total Absences OFEB Liability
2016........ 3 839 3 839 $ - L) -
0 Various (1) ... 26,244 727 23,8928 1,591
| Totals... § 27083 § 1566 § 23926 § 1,591
| (1) Payment of compensated absences, OPEB and net pension liabilities are dependent on
. many factors; therefore, timing of future payments is not readily determinable.
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6. Remaining Annual Maturities of Long-Term Liabilities - ECMCC Component Unit
Net

Long-term Capital Judgments Pension
Year Total Serial Bonds Loan Lease and Claims OPEB Liability Other
2016 ....... $ 10619 $ 2,860 $ 5,001 $ 2,758 $ - $ - $ - $
2017 ....... 10,711 3,020 5,191 2,500 - - -
2018 ....... 10,791 3,185 5,389 2,217 - - -
2019 ....... 11,223 3,360 5584 2,269 - - -
2020 ....... 10,507 3,545 5,806 1,156 - - -
2021-2025 . 53,396 20,875 32,521 - - - -
2026-2030 . 48,745 27,435 21,310 - - - -
2031-2033. 20,510 20,510 - - - - - -
Various {1).. 200,089 - - - 49,466 123,222 24112 3,289

Totals .. $376,591 $ 84790 $80,812 $ 10,900 $ 49,4686 $ 123,222 $24,112 $3,289

(1 Payment of judgments and claims, OPEB and net pension liabilities is dependent on many
factors; therefore, timing of future payments is not readily determinable.

G. Permanent Financing Requirements

Under New York State statutes, permanent bonding of general County improvements must take place
within five to seven years of the date of initial financing. Specially assessed improvements, (e.g.,
sewer), have no limitation as to their period of temporary financing, except that a three-year limitation
exists where such financing has been obtained through the New Y ork State Environmental Facilities
Corporation. The County has permanently financed all significant indebtedness subject to this
permanent financing statute.

H. Consttutional Debt Limit

The County constitutional debt limit at December 31, 2015 is computed as follows (dollars in
thousands):

Five-year average full valuation

of taxable real estate (2011-2015)............. $ 47,664,655
Debtlimit @ 7% . oo e e e $ 3,336,526
Netindebtedness (after statutory

exclusSionS) . ..o 452965 *
Netdebtcontractingmargin....................... $ 2,883,561

Percentage of debt contracting
powerexhausted .. .......... ... ... ... 13.58%

*Net indebtedness includes general obligation bonds of $368,175,000 and ECMCC bond guaranty of
$£84,790,000 (excludes RAN of $89,560,000, ETASC bonds of $355,202,001 to be paid with tobacco
settlement proceeds by ETASC, ECFSA bonds of $74,565,000 to be paid by ECMCC, and sewer
bonds for self-supporting sewer districts of $71,485,965).
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Current Refunding

In October 2015, the County of Erie issued $24,615,000 in general obligation bonds to refund
$27,405,000 of outstanding bonds. The net proceeds of $28,021,871 were deposited into an Escrow
Deposit Fund, The moneys deposited constituted an irrevocable deposit and remained there un-
invested and without liability for interest, in an amount that was sufficient to pay the redemptive price
of the refunded bonds and all accumulated interest up to the date fixed for redemption.

The County of Erie elected to call and redeem on December 1, 2015 all of the outstanding aggregate
principal amount of the $27,405,000 refunded serial bonds at par plus accrued interest to the
redemption date.

The County completed the current refunding to reduce its total debt service payments over the
next 15 years by $3,578,703 and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present
values of the old and new debt service payments) of $3,195,179.

XIV — NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCE

Net Position

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements utilize a net position presentation.
Net position is categorized as net investment in capital assets, restricted and unrestricted.

Net Investment In Capital Assets — This category groups all capital assets, including
infrastructure, into one component of net position. Accumulated depreciation and the
outstanding balances of debt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or
improvement of these assets reduce the balance in this category.

Restricted Net Position — This category represents external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed
by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted Net Position — This category represents net position of the County not restricted
for any project or other purpose.

Fund Balance

In the governmental fund financial statements, nonspendable amounts represent net current financial
resources that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable form or legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact. Nonspendable fund balance maintained by the County
at December 31, 2015 includes:

Community Development Loans — $31,148,519 representing amounts offset for community
development loans receivable, which are legally required to be maintained intact.

Prepaid Items — $12,711,693 representing amounts prepaid to vendors and the New York
State and Local Employees' Retirement Systemn that are applicable to future accounting
periods.

In the fund financial statements, restricted fund balances are amounts constrained to specific purposes
(such as grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of government) through constitutional provisions
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or by enabling legislation. Restricted fund balance of the County at December 31, 2015 includes:

Handicapped Parking — $154,393 representing monies restricted for education, advocacy
and increased public awareness of handicapped parking laws.

Debt Service — $30,613,993 representing funds to be used toward the future repayment of
bonded debt service.

Capital Expenditures — $88,908,036 representing funds that have been reserved to fund
capital projects and the purchase of capital assets. This amount includes commitments
(encumbrances) of $43,833,484 for capital projects currently in process.

The County Legislature authorizes assigned amounts of fund balance. Assigned funds represent
amounts intended to be used for a specific purpose. In the fund financial statements, assignments by
the County at December 31, 2015 include:

Subsequent Year’s Expenditures — Represents available fund balance of $24,592,361
appropriated to meet expenditure requirements in the 2016 year.,

Judgments and Claims — Represents amounts to fund future settlements of various claims
and litigation in the amount of $1,000,000.

Other Purposes — Includes amounts assigned to cover the County’s cost of road repairs
($3,282,289), encumbrances ($5,880,967) and positive residual balances ($20,781,094) in
Special Revenue Funds; and General Fund encumbrances ($2,888,616).

Accounting prescription set by the Erie County Comptroller provides for a sunset provision of one
fiscal year for all fund balance assignments. Legislature approval is required to establish and
subsequently appropriate fund balance assignments.

The County considers encumbrances to be significant for amounts that are encumbered in excess
of $1,000,000 for a particular purpose. As of December 31, 2013, significant encumbrances are
as follows (dollars in thousands):

Other
General Governmental

Purpose Fund Funds
Social Services Programs. . . ... .. ... .. . oL, $ 1,771 $ -
Sewer District Operations. ... ......... .. ... ... .... - 5,595
Buffalo & Erie County Botanical Gardens ............ - 1,629
Tonawanda Rails to Trails Construction . ............. - 1,195
Counfywide Road Construction and Preservation . .. ... - 2,659
Countywide Bridge Construction and Preservation .. ... - 1,692
Countywide Capital Overlay Program .. .............. - 2,719
Sewer District #3 Construction and Improvements . .. .. - 6,688
Sewer District #1 Construction and Improvements . . . .. - 1,198
Sewer District #4 Construction and Improvements . . . .. - 6,483
ECC - New Academic Building . ... .. ... ........... - 3,486
Total . ..o $ 1,771 3 33,344

In circumstances where an expenditure is to be made for a purpose for which amounts are available in
multiple fund balance classifications, it is the County’s policy that the order in which resources will
be expended is as follows: restricted fund balance, followed by committed fund balance, assigned
fund balance, and lastly, unassigned fund balance.
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XV - INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS

A.

Interfund Receivables and Pavables

Interfund receivables and payables of the County at December 31, 2015, and the College at
August 31, 2015, consisted of the following (dollars in thousands):

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund ECFSAGeneral.................. $ 53,164
Nonmajor Governmental Funds . . .. .. 47,400
College........coovviinnnan.. 3,130
Nonmajor Proprietary Fund ... ... ... 6,914
110,608
Nonmajor Governmental Funds Nonmajor Governmentat Funds . .. ... 48,271
GeneratFund................... 1,212
47,483
Nonmajor Proprietary Fund College..........cooiieii .., 4
GeneralFund . .................. 1,323
1,327
College GeneralFund .................... 31
Totalreceivables . ... v e e e e 159,449
Less: timing differences . ... .. .. .. e 1,069
Totalpayables . .. ... ..o e $ 160,518

Interfund payables exceed interfund receivables by $1,069,860. This difference represents interfund
payables in the amount 0f $1,969,382 and interfund receivables in the amount of $899,522 recorded
by the County that are not reflected as interfund receivables or payables in the College’s balance
sheet because of the difference between the County and the College fiscal year end.

All balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are
provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system,
and (3) payments between funds are made.
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B. Due To/From Component Unit and Primary Government

Amounts due between the compenent units and the primary government at December 31, 2015,
consisted of the following (dollars in thousands):

Receivable Entity Payable Entity Amount
Primary Government-General Fund ECMCC ComponentUnit................... 5 7,262
Primary Government-Governmental

Activities ECMCC ComponentUnit .. ................. $ 80,812
Primary Government-Nonmajor

Governmental Fund ECMCC Component Unit . .. ................ $ 172
Primary Government-Nonmajor

Proprietary Fund ECMCC ComponentUnit................... 3 9,193
ECMCC Component Unit Primary Government-Governmental Activities. ... § 26,000
ECMCC Component Unit Primary Government-General Fund. . .. ........ $ 910

During 2011, the ECFSA issued serial bonds in the amount of $86,250,000 to assist ECMCC in the
construction of a new residential health care facility. Loan agreements were executed whereby the
ECFSA loaned the proceeds and net premium of $10,614,413 to the County, who in turn loaned the
monies to ECMCC. Although the amortization schedules on the bonds and the loan are
approximately the same in total, the principal and interest components vary. On a monthly basis,
ECMCC pays the County directly, while the ECFSA withholds sales tax revenue that otherwise
would be transferred to the County. The ECFSA retains these monies until the semi-annual debt
service on the bonds are due. Principal and interest payments on long-term obligations between the
ECFSA and the County are reported as transfers in and transfers out in the fund financial statements.

Principal payments received from ECMCC during 2015 totaling $4,817,000 are recorded within
miscellaneous revenues in the County’s Debt Service Fund and eliminated in the govemment-wide
statements. The remaining amount due from ECMCC in the amount of $80,812,000 is reported on
the government-wide financial statements only. This balance is shown as a reconciling item on the
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position.

The remaining principal and interest payments on ECMCC’s long-term lean payable to the County
are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Year Principal Interest Total
2016........ 5 5,001 $ 2,038 $ 7,939
207 ........ 5,191 2,748 7,939
2018........ 5,389 2,550 7.939
2019........ 5,594 2,345 7,939
2020........ 5,806 2,132 7.938
2021-2025 . . .. 32,521 7,173 39,694
2026-2028 . . .. 21,310 1,183 22,493
Totals . . . $ 80,812 $ 21,069 $ 101,881
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C. Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers for the County for the year ended December 31, 2015, and the College for the
year ended August 31, 2015, consisted of the following (dollars in thousands):

Transfers Qut Transfers In Amount  Purpose - provide financial resources:
General Fund Nonmajor Governmental Funds . ... .. $ 4,673 Forthe local share of Grant programs
Nonmajor Governmental Funds ... ... 63,288 For general debt senvice
Nonmajor Governmental Funds . . .. .. 1,902 To support various capital projects
Nonmajor Governmental Funds . .. ... 18,388 For highway improvements
Nonmajor Governmental Funds . .. ... 3,422 To support E-911 operations
College...........ooiiiiint, 15,754 To support College operations
ECFSA . ... . 377 For short term debt
107,814
ECFSA GeneralFund .................... 424,723  For general operations from sales tax receipts
Nonmajor
Governmental Funds  Nonmajor Governmental Funds . .. ... 2,714 To support various capital projects
Nonmajor Governmental Funds . ... .. 5,211 For general debt service
Nonmajor Governmental Funds . . . . .. 1 Forlocal share of storm costs
Nonmajor Governmentat Funds .. .. .. 14,811  For highway maintenance
Nonmajor Governmental Funds . ... .. 6,014 For sewer debt service
Nonmajor Governmental Funds . .. ... 60,620 For ECFSA debt service
Nonmajor Governmental Funds . . .. .. 400 For ETASC Operations
GeneralFund . ................... 938 For general operations
College...........coviiin... 1,800 For movable equipment
92 509
Totaltransfers ... ..o $625,048
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XVI - CONTINGENCIES

A,

Sales Tax Audits

The State of New York periodically audits its distribution of sales tax revenues to counties
throughout the State. Subsequent revisions to the revenues recorded as of December 31, 2015, if any,
would be reflected in the operating statement in the year that they are calculated.

Supplemental 1% Sales Tax

Through legislation approved by the County and the State of New York, first effective in March of
1985, the County extended an additional 1% sales and compensating use tax. An added requirement
of this legislation commencing in 2007, is that the County is required to share $12,500,000 of this tax
with other local municipalities. This tax generated approximately $155,838,307 (gross) for the year
ended December 31, 2015. The enabling legislation allowing this additional tax expires November
30, 2017. Legislative approval by both New York State and the County is required for the
continuation of this revenue source.

Supplemental 0,25% Sales Tax

Through legislation approved by the County and the State of New York, the County initiated an
additional 0.25% sales and compensating use tax effective July 1, 2005. This tax generated
approximately $38,935,335 for the year ended December 31, 2015. The enabling legislation
allowing this additional tax expires November 30, 2017. Legislative approval by both New York
State and the County is required for the continuation of this revenue source.

Supplemental 0.50% Sales Tax

The County Legislature approved a home rule message requesting approval of the New York State
Legislature to raise the sales tax 0.50%, to 8.75%. The New York State Legislature approved the
Sales Tax Request in January 2006 and the County Legislature enacted the tax increase effective
January 15, 2006. This tax generated approximately $77,870,670 for the year ended December 31,
2015. The enabling legislation allowing this additional tax expires November 30, 2017. Legislative
approval by both New York State and the County is required for the continuation of this revenue
source.

Federal and State Aid

The County receives federal aid, state aid, or both for a portion of its mandated social services
program expenditures (reported in the Economic Assistance and Opportunity category in the financial
statements), such as Medicaid, Family Assistance and Safety Net. The County appropriates only the
local share of state administered Medicaid expenditures. Conversely, the County appropriates total
expenditures for Family Assistance and Safety Net programs, and budgets state and/or federal aid as
revenue. Federal and state aid represents approximately 43% of 2015 County appropriations for
social services programs.

The County also receives certain federal, state and private grants. These grants are used primarily to
augment current operations, and for special demonstration projects and programs. Should funding of
any such grant be stopped at any point, the County may assume the cost thereof in its operating
budget or suspend the programs funded by such grant.
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The Federal and State governments are not constitutionally obligated to maintain or continue current
levels of federal and state aid to the County. Accordingly, no assurance can be given that present
federal and state aid levels will be maintained in the future. Federal and state budgetary restrictions
which may eliminate or substantially reduce federal or state aid could have a material adverse effect
upon the County, requiring either a counterbalancing increase in revenues from other sources or a
curtailment of nen-mandated expenditures. Social Services and Medicaid expenditures are generally
mandated by New York State law.

Other Contingent Liabilities

1. Financial Assistance Audits

As discussed above, the County receives significant financial assistance from numerous
federal and state governmental agencies and third-party payors. The disbursement of monies
received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and conditions
specified in the related agreements and are subject to audit by the funding agencies or
payors. Any disallowed expenditures resulting from such audits could become a liability of
the governmental or proprietary funds. At December 31, 2015, ECMCC, a component unit
of the County, has recorded $2,777,000 as an accrued liability for probable third-party payor
settlements. The amount of any other expenses that may be disallowed cannot be determined
at this time, although ECMCC expects such other amounts to be immaterial.

2. Pollution Remediation

The County has identified two pollution remediation sites that trigger the obligating event
criteria relating to GASB Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pollution Remediation Obligations. The County is aware that the New York State
Department of Environmental Conservation has classified these sites as Class 2, meaning
that remediation action is required due to a significant threat posed to the public health or
environment, Although a loss is probable, it is not possible at this time to reasonably
estimate the amount of any obligation for remediation that would be material to the County's
financial statements because the extent of environmental impact, allocation among the
potentially responsible parties, remediation alternatives (which could involve no or minimal
efforts), and concurrence of the regulatory authorities have not yet advanced to the stage
where a reasonable estimate of any loss that would be material to the County can be made.

XVII - JOINT VENTURES

A,

Western Regional Off-Track Betting

Pursuant to authority provided by New York State statute, a regional off-track betting corporation
was established in 1973 to operate a system of off-track pari-mutuel betting within the Western New
York area. This public benefit corporation, known as the Western Regional Off-Track Betting
Corporation (“OTB”), is governed by a board of directors comprised of one member from each
participating county and city. The OTB net revenue is divided among the participating counties, with
one-half being distributed based on population and the remainder based on each entity’s share of the
total wagering in the region. A county containing an eligible city that has elected to participate in the
OTB must relinquish a portion of the revenue to which it would otherwise be entitled to such city in
an amount equal to the percentage of the county population attributable to the city. In the case of Erie
County, both the County and the City of Buffalo participate in the OTB.
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The OTB has the power to issue bonds and notes to carry out the purposes for which it was
formed. Such bonds, notes or other, obligations are not a debt of the participating
municipalities, and they may only be paid from the OTB’s funds.

OTB total undistributed net revenue decreased by $1,934,374 for the year ended December
31, 2015. The OTB reported net revenue available for distribution to participating
municipalities of $2,431,087. In addition, cumulative net revenue retained for capital
acquisitions was $15,418,600 at December 31, 2015. The unexpended balance of funds
retained for capital acquisitions cannot exceed the lesser of 1% of total pari-mutuel wagering
pools for the previous 12 months or the undepreciated value of the OTB offices, facilities,
and premises. Separate financial statements for this joint venture can be obtained from the
OTB Comptroller at 8315 Park Road, Batavia, New York, 14020.

B. Buffalo Erie Niagara L.and Improvement Corporation

The Buffalo Erie Niagara Land Improvement Corporation (“BENLIC”) was established on
June 6, 2012 under New York State’s Land Bank Act (Article 16 of the Not-for-Profit
Corporation Law). BENLIC’s mission is to confront and alleviate the problems distressed
properties cause to communities by supporting municipal and regional revitalization efforts
and strategically acquiring, improving, assembling, and selling distressed, vacant,
abandoned, and/or tax-delinquent properties. BENLIC was formed through a joint venture of
the County of Erie and Cities of Buffalo, Lackawanna, and Tonawanda and is governed by a
board of directors comprised of 11 members.

BENLIC has the power to incur debt to carry out the purposes for which it was formed. Such
debt is not an obligation of the participating municipalities, and may only be paid from
BENLIC funds.

BENLIC is eligible to receive financial assistance from federal and state governmental
agencies in the form of grants. BENLIC reported revenues and other support totaling
$1,854,034 and expenses totaling $1,049,107 for year ended December 31,2015, BENLIC
reported net position of $1,025,602 at December 31, 2013, of which $4,734 was temporarily
restricted.

Separate financial statements for this joint venture can be obtained from the BENLIC
Executive Director at 95 Franklin Street, Buffalo, New York, 14202.
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XVIII - RESTATEMENTS AND CHANGES TO NET POSITION

As discussed in Note I, during the year ended December 31, 2015 the County implemented GASB Statement
Nos. 68 and 71. The implementation of these GASB Statements resulted in the reporting of an asset, deferred
outflows of resources, a liability and a deferred inflow of resources related to the County’s participation in the
New York State Employees’ and Teachers” Retirement Systems.

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the County elected to change its method of recording community
development loans. These loans will be offset by nonspendable fund balance. Previously, these loans were
offset by a deferred inflow of resources. As a result of this implementation, fund balance of the Community
Development Fund and governmental activities net position increased $31,051,544, and deferred inflows of
resources decreased by the same amount.

The effect of these restatements are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Governmental Business-type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government
Net Position - December 31, 2014, as previously stated . . ........... $ (36,540) $ (11,989) $  (48,529)
GASB Statements No. 68 and 71 implementation:
Beginning system asset - Teachers' Retirement System ... ... ... 609 609

Beginning system liability - Employees' Retirement System ... ... (40,829} (3,966) (44,795)
Beginning deferred outflow of resources for contributions
subseguent to the measurement date:

Teachers' RetirementSystem .. ......................... - 383 383
Employees' RetirementSystem .. ....................... 31,154 1,718 32,872
Loansreceivable .. ... ... ... ... i 31,052 - 31,052
Net Position - December 31,2014, asrestated . ................... $ (15,163) $ (13,245) $ (28,408)
Community
Development
Fund

Fund Balance - December 31, 2014, as previously stated . ... .......... 5 -

Loans receivable 31,052

Fund Balance - December 31,2014, asrestated .. .. ................. 3 31,052

Library and the ECMCC component units also implemented GASB Statement Nos. 68 and 71 resulting in the
following restatements (dollars in thousands):

Library ECMCC

Cormponent Unit ~ Component Unit

Net Position - December 31, 2014, as previously stated . . . ... ...... $ 1,701 $ 134,381

GASB Statements No. 68 and 71 implementation:;
Beginning system liability - Employees' Retirement System . . . .. (2,129) (32,253)
Beginning deferred outflow of resources for contributions
subseqguent to the measurement date:

Employees’ Retirement System ........................ 1,587 29,770

Net Position - December 31, 2014, asrestated . . . ................ 3 1,159 5 131,898
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XIX - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Management has evaluated subsequent events through June 21, 2016, which is the date the financial

statements are available for issuance, and have determined that there are no subsequent events that
require disclosure under generally accepted accounting principles.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

The schedule of funding progress presents the results of OPEB valuations as of January 1,

= 2014, 2012, 2010, 2008, and 2006 and provides trend information about whether the
3 actuarial values of the plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
L actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

L The schedules of local government’s proportionate share of the net pension liability/(asset)
and local government’s confributions presents trend information of the components of the
net pension liability/(asset) and related ratios for each retirement system the County
participates in, including the pension plan’s fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total pension liability, and the contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll.
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Schedule of Funding Progress

Other Post-Employment Benefits Plan — Primary Government
(dollars in thousands}

Actuarial UAAL as a

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage

Valuation Value of Liability (1) AAL Funded Covered of Covered

Date Assets {"AAL") {"UAAL") Ratio Payroll Payroll

11/2014 ....... $ - % 906,421 % 906,421 -% $ 262,355 345.49%
1d2012....... - 838,682 838,682 - % 254,423 329.64%
1/1/2010....... - 916,628 916,628 - % 260,985 351.22%
1/1/2008 ....... - 835,493 835,493 - % 248,847 335.75%
1/1/2006....... - 736,192 736,192 - % 243,332 302.55%

Note:
(1) Based on the Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method
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Schedule of Local Government's Proportionate
Share of the Net Pension Liability

Employees' Retirement System - Primary Government
Last Two Fiscal years

£ (dollars in thousands)
Year Ended December 31,
) 2015 2014
g’“‘;
£ Measurementdate ... .......... .. ... ... ... March 31, 2015  March 31, 2014
County's proportion of the net pension
@bl . . oo e e e 0.991287% 0.991287%
County's proportionate share of the net pension
fiability .. ... . $ 33,488 $ 44,795
County's covered payroll .. ............... ..., $ 228,892 $ 226,001
) County's proportionate share of the net
{ pension liabitity as a percentage of its
j covered-employee payroll .. ................. 14.63% 19.82%
- Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension liability . .. ... ... 97.95% 97.15%
L

L4
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Schedule of Local Government's Contributions

Employees' Retirement System - Primary Government

Last Two Fiscal years
(dollars in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2015 2M4

Contractually required contributions . ............ 3 42,070 % 46,088
Contributions in relation to the

contractually required contribution . ... ......... (42,070) {46,088}
Contribution deficiency (excess)................ 3 - $ -
County's covered-employee payrell . ............ $ 228,892 § 226,001
Contributions as a percentage of

covered-employee payroll . . . ... ... . ... 18.38% 20.39%
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Schedule of Local Government's Proportionate
Share of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset)

Teacher's Retirement System - Primary Government

Last Two Fiscal years
(doltars in thousands}

Year Ended August 31,
2015 2014
Measurementdate . ............. ... ... .. ... June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013
College's proporticn of the net pension
llabifityflassety . ... ... i 0.092554% 0.092554%
College's proportionate share of the net pension
liabilityMasset) .. ... oo $ (10,651} {609)
College's covered payroll . . ................... 5 14,243 3 13,674
College's proportionate share of the net
pension liability/(asset) as a percentage of its
covered-employee payroll .. ................. (74.78%) (4.45%)
Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension liabifity/(asset) . . . 111.48% 100.70%

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK » 91
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Schedule of Local Government's Contributions

Teacher's Retirement System - Primary Government

Last Two Fiscal years
(dollars in thousands)}

Year Ended August 31,
2015 2014
Coniractually required contributions . . . .......... $ 2295 3% 1,605
Contributions in relation {o the
contractually required contribution . ............ (2,295) (1,605)
Contribution deficiency (excess) .............vu 3 - $ -
College's covered-employee payroll . ............ 3 14,243 % 13,674
Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroli .. ... ... ... . ... 16.11% 11.74%
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FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE SCHEDULES
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Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended December 31, 2015

Federal Federal/ Amount
CFDA Pass-Through Provided to Federal
Federal G rantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title (1) Number (2) Number Sub-Recipients  Expenditures (3)
U.8. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Passed tharough NYS Education Department:
Child Nutrition Cluster;
School Breakfast Program £0.553 N/A b - ) 19,748
Naticonal School Lunch Program 10.555 N/A - 31,083
Total Child Nuirition Cluster - 50,831
Passed through NYS Office of Temporary and Disability Assistance:
Food Stamps Cluster:
State Administrative Matching Grants for the
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program 10.561 N/A - 9,878,825
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - 9,929,656
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Direct Programs: .
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 14,218 N/A 31,094 2,150,046
Emergency Solutions Grants Program 14,231 N/A - 117,206
Supportive Housing Program ' 14.235 N/A 2,628,348 2,680,293
Shelter Plus Care 14.238 N/A 2,315,308 2,315,308
Home Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 N/A - 676,015
Lead Outreach Grants 14,904 N/A - 764,581
Passed through NYS Dept. of Health - Bureau of Community Services:
Lead Qutreach Grants i4.904 C026833 - 1,228,970
Total CFDA 14.904 - 1,993,551
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 4,974,750 9,932,419
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Direct Programs:
Services for Trafficking Victims 16.320 N/A - 178,962
Crime Laboratory Improvement 16.564 N/A - 623,750
Grants to Encourage Arrest Policies and
Enforcement of Protection Orders Program 16.590 N/A - 10,468
Local Law Enforcement Block Grants Program 16,592 N/A - 31,580
Passed through NYS Division of Criminal Justice Services:
Juvenile Accountability Block Grants [6.523 T612203 - 11,370
Juvenile Accountability Block Grants 16.523 T612246 - 4,728
Totat CFDA 16.523 - 16,098
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention_Allocation to States 16.540 T612276 - 21,757
Violence Against Women Formula Grants 16.588 N/A - 66,750
Paul Coverdell Forensic Sciences Improvement Grant Program 16.742 N/A - 20,763
Passed through the City of Buffalo:
Edward Byme Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 C632362 - 4.436
Passed through NYS Office of Victim Services:
Crime Victim Assistance 16.575 C100013 - 52,437
Crime Victim Assistance 16.575 C100014 - 405,429
Total CFDA 16.575 - 457,866
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE - 1,432,430
1.5. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
Passed through Senior Service America, Inc.:
Senior Communily Service Employment Program 17.235 N/A - 811,227
{continued)
See accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards. Comm. 19E-17
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Federal Federal/ Amount
CFDA Pass-Through Provided to Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title (1} Number (2} Number Sub-Recipients  Expenditures (3)
Passed through NYS Office for the Aging:
Senior Community Service Employment Program 17.235 N/A - 297,416
Total CFDA 17.235 - 1,108,643
Passed through the BufTalo and Erie County Workforce Investment Board:
Work Incentives Grants 17.266 N/A - 220,981
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR - 1,329,624

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Direet Program:
Transit Services Programs Cluster:
New Freedom Program 20.521 N/A - 84,160
Passed through NYS Department of Transportation:
Highway Planning and Construction Cluster:

Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 N/A - 2,898,945
Highway Safety Cluster:

State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 N/A - 6,132

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION - 2,989,237

INSTITUTE OF MUSEUM AND LIBRARY SERVICES
Direct Program:
National Leadership Grants 45312 N/A - 99,504

TOTAL INSTITUTE OF MUSEUM AND LIBRARY SERVICES - 99,904

U.S, ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
Direct Program:

Great Lakes Program 66.46% N/A - 315,097
Passed through Health Research Incorporated:
Great Lakes Program 66.469 4161-01 - 300
Total CFDA 66.469 - 315,397
Passed through NYS Department of Health:
State Indoor Radon Grants 66.032 N/A - 41,648
Beach Monitoring and Notification Program Implementation Granis 66.472 T023286 - 19,955
Passed through Empire State Development - WNY:
Pollution Prevention Grants Program 66.708 i5-299EP - 105,383
TOTAL U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY - 482,383

U.S, DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Passed through NYS Department of Health:
Special Education-Grants for Infants and Families 84.181 N/A - 383,568

TOTAL U.5. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - 383,568

1.8, ELECTION ASSISTANCE COMMISSION
Passed through NYS Board of Elections:
Help America Vote Act Requiremenis Payments 90.401 003220 - 148,877

TOTAL U.S. ELECTION ASSISTANCE COMMISSION - 148,877

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Passed through National Association of County and City Health Officials:

Moedical Reserve Corps Small Grant Program 93.008 MRC100026 - 797
Medical Reserve Corps Small Grant Program 93.008 MRCI1126 - 5,000
Medical Reserve Corps Small Grant Program 93.008 MRCI130026 - 2,937
Total CFDA 93.008 - 8,734
(continued)
See accompanying notes fo the schedule of expenditures of federal awards. Comm. 19E-17
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Federal Federal/ Amount
CFDA Pass-Through Provided to Federal
T Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title (1) Number (2) Number Sub-Reeipients  Expenditures (3)
Passed through Health Research Incorporated:
Public Health Emergency Preparedness 93.069 1601-11 - 543,102
Public Health Emergency Preparedness 93.069 1799-11 - 32,513
Total CFDA 93.069 - 575,615
Passed through NYS Office for the Aging:
Aging Cluster:
Special Programs for the Aging, Title 111, Part B-Grants for
Supportive Services and Senior Centers 93.044 N/A - 1,142,905
Special Programs for the Aging, Title IH, Part C-Nutrition Services 93,045 N/A - 2,116,583
Nutrition Services Incentive Program 93.053 N/A - 686,708
Total Aging Cluster - 3,946,196
Special Program for the Aging, Title III, Part D-Disease Prevention
L and Health Promotion Services 93.043 N/A - 30,123
G National Family Caregiver Support, Title III, Part E 93.052 N/A - 504,994
Medicare Enrollment Assistance Program 93.071 N/A - 33,376
3”@ Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) Research,
i Demonstrations and Evaluations 93.779 N/A - 63,721
Passed through NYS Department of Health:
1 Immunization Cooperative Agreements 93.268 C023244 - 306,615
. Medicaid Cluster:
Medical Assistance Program 93.778 N/A - 10,944,802
Preventive Health Services-Sexually Transmitted Diseases Control Grants 93.977 C021835E - 17,482
Preventive Health Services-Sexually Transmitted Diseases Control Grants 93.977 C(28066 - 191,770
Total CFDA 93.977 - 209,252
Total Medicaid Cluster - 11,154,054
1 Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant to the States 93.994 C021145 - 597,817
: : Passed through NYS Office of Temporary and Disability Assistance:
TANF Cluster:
i Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558 N/A - 89,379,534
i Child Support Enforcement 93.563 N/A - 4,207,836
Refugee and Entrant Assistance-State Administered Programs 93.566 N/A - 591,221
£y Low-income Home Energy Assistance 93.568 N/A - 40,747,424
. CCDF Cluster:
7 Child Care and Development Block Grant 93,575 N/A - 19,432,646
Stephanie Tubbs Jones Child Welfare Services Program 93.645 N/A - 1,040,650
Passed through NYS Office of Children and Family Services:
Foster Care, Title IV-E 93.658 N/A - 21,230,999
Social Services Block Grant 93.667 N/A - 11,819,417
Family Violence Prevention and Services/
L Domestic Violence Sheiter and Supportive Services 93.671 C025270 - 7,782
Family Violence Prevention and Services/
Domestic Violence Shelter and Supportive Services 93.671 C027505 - 27,711
Ll Total CFDA 93.671 - 35,553
Passed through NYS Department of Mental Health:
L Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness (PATH) 93.150 N/A - 85,577
. } Block Grants for Community Mental Health Services 93.958 N/A N i,006,429
Passed through NY S Office of Alcoholism and Substance Abuse:
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 93,959 N/A - 5,830,610
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - 212,719,141
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Federal Federal/ Amount
CFDA Pass-Through Provided to Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title (1) Number (2) Nurmber Sub-Recipients Expenditures (3)
CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICE
Passed through Corporation for National Senior Services

Retired and Senior Volunteer Program 94.002 N/A - 80,684
TOTAL CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICE - 80,684
SOCIAL SECURITY ADMINISTRATION

Direct Program:

Supplementary Security Income 96.006 N/A - 108,400
TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY ADMINISTRATION - 108,400
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

Passed through NYS Division of Homeland Security and Emergency Services:

Disaster Grants-Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters) 97.036 N/A 463,383 4,436,613

Emergency Management Performance Grants 97.042 N/A - 379,215

Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 C173619 - 25,549

Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 C173629 - 139,392

Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 C191229 - 4,405

Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 191239 - 84,390

Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 198323 - 740

Homeland Securily Grant Program 97.067 C198333 - 104,128

Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 C198389 - 108,483

Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 C198440 - 210,388

Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 C191249 - 54,384

Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 C970340 - 594,771

Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 C845211 - 24 988

Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 C845231 - 45,315

Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 CB845241 - 103,469

Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 C970310 - 251,615

Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 C970320 - 358,296

Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 C970330 - 917,867

Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 970339 - 33,940

Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 970349 - 53,087

Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 T173639 - 8,561

Total CFDA 97.067 - 3,121,768
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY 463,383 7,937,596
TOTAL FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE (4) 3 5,438,133 § 247,573,919

(concluded)
See accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended December 31, 2015

I.

II.

III.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes the federal grant
activity of County of Erie, New York (the “County”) under programs of the federal government for the year
ended December 31, 2015. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements
of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance”). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of the County, it is not intended to and does not present the
financial position, changes in net position or cash flows of the County. The following notes were identified
on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards:

(1) Includes all federal award programns of the County of Erie, New York. The federal expenditures of the
Erie Community College and Erie County Medical Center Corporation have not been included.

(2) Source: Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance.

(3) Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and includes all
federal award programs.

(4) A reconciliation to the financial statements is available.
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein
certain types of expenditures are not allowable or limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on
the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as
expenditures in prior years. Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

AMOUNTS PROVIDED TO SUBRECIPIENTS

Certain program funds are passed through the County to subrecipient organizations. The County identifies, to
the extent practical, the total amount provided to subrecipients from each federal program; however, the
Schedule does not contain separate schedules disclosing how the subrecipients outside of the County’s
control utilized the funds. The County requires subrecipients receiving funds to submit separate audit reports
disclosing the use of the program funds.
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Drescher & Malecki LLP
3083 W/illiam Street, Suite &
Cheektowaga, New York 14227
Telephone: 716.565.2289

Fax: 716.565,.2201

: e
& Malecki

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable County Executive

Honorable County Comptroller

Honorable Members of County Legislature
s County of Erie, New York:

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
Ammerica and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental

£ activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County of Erie, New York (the “County™), as
. of and for the year ended December 31, 2015 (with Exie Community College for the year ended August

31, 2015), and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County’s
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June 21, 2016. Our report includes a
3 reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the Erie Community College
Foundation, Inc., Erie County Fiscal Stability Authority, Erie County Medical Center Corporation, and
e the Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation, as described in our report on the
County’s financial statements. This report does not include the results of the other auditors’ testing of
intemal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on separately
by those auditors. The financial statements of the Erie Community College Foundation, Inc. and the
Augxiliary Services Corporation of Erie Community College, Inc. were not audited in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the County’s internal

control over financial reporting (“intemal control”) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate

in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
I purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control. Accordingly, we
L do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemnal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

- 98 - Comm. 19E-17
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Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations,
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in intemal control over financial reporting that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

b2 MO P

June 21, 2016
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Drescher & Malecki LLP
3083 William Street, Suite 5
Cheektowaga, New York 14227
Telephone: 716.565.2299

Fax: 716.565.2201

i Dire e
& Malecki

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Honorable County Executive

Honorable County Comptroller

Honorable Members of County Legislature
County of Erie, New York:

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the County of Erie, New York’s (the “County™) compliance with the types of
corpliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance

L Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the County’s major federal programs
for the year ended December 31, 2015. The County’s major federal programs are identified in the
s summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

The County’s basic financial statements include the operations of the Erie Community College (the
3 “College”) and the Erie County Medical Center Corporation (the “Corporation™), which received
$27,634,917 and $1,704,317, respectively, in federal awards which are not included in the County’s
schedule of expenditures of federal awards during the year ended December 31, 2015. Our compliance
audit, described below, did not inchide the operations of the College and the Corporation because other
auditors were engaged to perform such audits in accordance with the Uniform Guidance or OMB Circular
A-133, as applicable.

Management’s Responsibility

L Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the County’s major federal
b programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
s our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermment Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
L Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audif
Requirements for Federal Awards (the “Uniform Guidance™). Those standards and the Uniform
Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An aundit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the County’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
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We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the County’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
year ended December 31, 2015.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered the County’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program as a basis for
designing auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of comnpliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control over
cowmnpliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

M b & MI—J LoP

June 21, 2016
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

ey Section I. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS
Financial Statements:

Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial statements audited
were prepared in accordance with GAAP: Unmodified*
(*which report includes a reference to other auditors and an emphasis of matter

paragraph regarding a restatement of net position and fund balance)

- Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? Yes v No
(1 Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes v" None reported
Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted? Yes v No
f Federal Awards:

Internal control over major programs:

é Material weakness(es) identified? Yes v No
- Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes v None reported
= Type of report the auditor issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified

' Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
. in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? Yes v No

re Identification of major federal programs:

CFDA Number(s) Namne of Federal Program or Cluster

10.561 State Administrative Matching Grants for the
L Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Prograin
14,235 Supportive Housing Program
'f 14.238 Shelter Plus Care
. 93.563 Child Support Enforcement
93.568 Low-incomne Home Energy Assistance
97.036 Disaster Grants-Public Assistance
L (Presidentially Declared Disasters)
97.067 Homeland Security Grant Program
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs? S 3,000,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? v Yes No
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Section [I. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

No findings noted.

Section III. FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

No findings noted.
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Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings and Corrective Action Plan
Year Ended December 31, 2015 (Follow-up on December 31, 2014 Findings)

There were no reportable findings for the year ended December 31, 2014.
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